Public Document Pack

T™ILLINGDON

LONDON
Central & SOUth To Councillors on the Committee
P la NN1N g Councillor lan Edwards (Chairman)
. Councillor David Yarrow (Vice-Chairman)
CO mmi ttee Councillor Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana
Councillor Roy Chamdal
Date: WEDNESDAY, 7 C illor Alan Ch
SEPTEMBER 2016 ouncilior Alan Lhapman
Councillor Jazz Dhillon (Labour Lead)
Time: 7.00 PM Councillor Janet Duncan
Venue: CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH Councillor Manjit Khatra
STREET, UXBRIDGE, Councillor Brian Stead

MIDDLESEX UB8 1UW

Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend
this meeting

Published: Tuesday, 30 August 2016

Contact: Democratic Services
Tel: 01895 250833
Email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk

This Agenda is available online at:
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=123&Year=0

Putting our residents first

Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services

London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Watching & recording this meetin _

g g g Watch a [®)73d broadcast of this
You can watch the public (Part 1) part of this meeting meeting on the Council's YouTube
on the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived Channel: Hillingdon London
after the meeting. Residents and the media are also
welcome to attend in person, and if they wish, report Zhose fllttslrl\?ilng shguld bed aware tf;}t the

H H H H OunNCil WIll TitmM and recorad proceeaings

on the, pu.bllc part of the mee_tmg' Any mgllwdual or for both official record and resident digital
organisation may record or film proceedings as long engagement in democracy.
as it does not disrupt proceedings.

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist.

When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking i ]

Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with

0
the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short wa \,)/>
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 1 Unbridg

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the %&Ega ﬁ

Centre. For details on availability and how to book rube and b

. . . Paviligns ™
parking space, please contact Democratic Service shogging sagions <
Please enter from the Council’s main reception Centre / r—LJ Intu =

where you will be directed to the Committee Roon

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is
available for use.

Mizinning

car park

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarn
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt.
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs,
should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
SECURITY INCIDENT follow the instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshall or a Security
Officer.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more people who live, work or study in the
borough, can speak at a Planning Committee in
support of or against an application. Petitions
must be submitted in writing to the Council in
advance of the meeting. Where there is a
petition opposing a planning application there is
also the right for the applicant or their agent to
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s), the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the

petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1

2
3
4
5

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting
To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting
Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items of business marked Part | will be considered in
Public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

PART | - Members, Public and the Press

Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the
Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | Land at 17 Peachey Brunel Two storey building comprising 2 1-20
Lane, Cowley two-bedroom and 3 one-bedroom
flats, to include parking provision, 84 - 90
66643/APP/2009/2783 involving demolition of existing
dwelling.
Recommendation: Approval
7 | Manor Court, High Heathrow | Change of use of existing building 21-42
Street, Villages to a house in multiple occupation
Harmondsworth (HMO) to provide 10 bedsitting 91 -105
units with parking for 7 cars
25525/APP/2016/1091 (retrospective application for full

planning permission).

Recommendation: Approval




8 | Hamilton Road, Uxbridge Two storey side extension, single 43 - 52
Cowley, Uxbridge South storey front extension, single
storey rear extension and 106 - 113
5670/APP/2016/2112 conversion of roof space to
habitable use to include a rear
dormer
Recommendation: Refusal
Applications without a Petition
Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
9 | Land adjacent to 14 Townfield | Construction of two, three- 53 -66
and 15 East Walk, bedroom houses, one two-
Hayes bedroom house and related 114 - 122
facilities.
63226/APP/2016/2383

Recommendation: Refusal

PART Il - MEMBERS ONLY

The reports listed below are not made public because they contain confidential or

exempt information under paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Local

Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

10 Enforcement Report

11 Enforcement Report

67 - 74
75-82

PART | - Plans for Central and South Planning Committee 83 - 122




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND AT 17 PEACHEY LANE COWLEY

Development: Two storey building comprising 2 x two-bedroom and 3 x one-bedroom flats,
to include parking provision, involving demolition of existing dwelling

LBH Ref Nos: 66643/APP/2009/2783

Drawing Nos: Photomontage Proposed
Location Plan (1:1250)
K1209
0950/102/D
0950/101/C

Date Plans Received: 24/12/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 24/12/2009
Date Application Valid: 06/01/2010
1. SUMMARY

This application seeks full planning permission for the erection of two-storey detached
building comprising three 1-bedroom flats and two 2-bedroom flats, with parking provision
for seven vehicles, the relocation of a vehicular crossover and the demolition of the
existing dwelling, at 17 Peachey Lane, Uxbridge.

It is not considered that the proposed development would have a detrimental impact on
the character and appearance of the surrounding area or on the residential amenity of
neighbouring occupants. The proposal is considered to comply with relevant UDP and
London Plan policies and accordingly, approval is recommended.

2. RECOMMENDATION

This planning application was reported to the 18/01/2010 and 7/09/2010 Central &
South Planning Committee meetings. Members resolved to approve the scheme
subject to conditions and a S106 Legal Agreement with Heads of Terms covering
Parking Permit Restrictions for future occupiers and financial contribution towards
the enhancement of Educational facilities. Following the committee a draft
agreement was prepared however this has not been completed and the decision
has therefore not been issued.

Since such time, the Council no longer seeks education contributions under the
S$106 process as this has been superseded by the introduction of the Hillingdon
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), which is an automatic levy added to new
developments.

Furthermore, whilst at the time Members requested a Head of Term restricting the
provision of parking permits for future occupiers of the flats, the development
provides 7 car parking spaces for the 2 x 2 bed flats and 3 x 1 bed flats, which is
line with Council parking standards. Therefore Officers do not consider parking
permit restrictions to be necessary in this instance as they are only sought where
there is an under provision of parking.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 1



The development has very recently been completed, in accordance with the
submitted plans, although not yet occupied. Hillingdon Building Control have
confirmed that they have been inspecting the build and that a completion
certificate is likely to be issued in the near future.

The original report to committee is set out below. Members will note that a number
of the policies and standards have been superceded and that there are
requirements within the report (such as lifetime homes and Code for Sustainable
Homes) which are no longer applicable. Thus whilst not changing the original
report, your officers have updated the conditions to meet current requirements
and the fact that the development is completed.

1 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 0950/101/C and
0950/102/D and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development
remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

2 RPD2 Obscured Glazing and Non-Opening Windows (a)

The bathroom windows facing the eastern elevation serving both the ground and first floor
shall be glazed with permanently obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8
metres taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3 NONSC Refuse Facilities

No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until in sink food waste
grinders for each dwelling, and covered, appropriately sign posted, secure and screened
storage of refuse at the premises has been constructed in accordance with the approved
plans and thereafter the facilities shall be permanently retained as such.

REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

4 H3 Vehicular access - construction

The building hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the vehicular means of access
has been constructed in accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter, the vehicular
means of access shall be retained and kept open for users of the building.

REASON

To ensure the provision of a safe and convenient access for vehicular traffic, prior to
occupation in accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

5 NONSC Visibility Splays

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 2



In addition to the hereby approved plans, unobstructed sight lines above a height of 1
metre shall be maintained on both sides of the entrance to the site, for a distance of at
least 2.4m in both directions along the back edge of the footway.

REASON
To ensure that pedestrian and vehicular safety is not prejudiced, in accordance with Policy
AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

6 H7 Parking Arrangements (Residential)

The parking areas and the marking out of parking spaces as shown on the approved
plans, shall be constructed, designated and allocated for the sole use of the occupants
prior to the occupation of the development and thereafter be permanently retained and
used for no other purpose in accordance with approved plan 0950/101/C and specifically,
the two parking spaces labelled F5 shall be allocated for the sole use of proposed Flat 5,
the two parking spaces labelled F4 shall be allocated for the sole use of proposed Flat 4,
the individual parking space labelled F1 shall be allocated for the sole use of proposed Flat
1, the individual parking space labelled F2 shall be allocated for the sole use of proposed
Flat 2, the individual parking space labelled F3 shall be allocated for the sole use of
proposed Flat 3.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

7 H15 Cycle Storage - In accordance with approved plans

The development hereby permitted, shall not be occupied until cycle storage facilities for 5
bicycles has been provided in accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter, these
facilities shall be permanently retained on site and be kept available for the use of cyclists.

REASON

To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and
hence the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with
Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

8 NONSC Sustainable Urban Drainage

The incorporation of sustainable urban drainage shown on the approved plans, shall be
installed prior to the occupation of the development and thereafter be permanently retained
and used for no other purpose.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is handled as close to its source as possible in
compliance with policy 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) and to ensure the
development does not increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy OE8 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

9 TL20 Amenity Areas

None of the dwellings hereby permitted shall be occupied, until the outdoor amenity area
serving the dwellings as shown on the approved plans (including balconies where these
are shown to be provided) has been made available for the use of residents of the
development. Thereafter, the amenity areas shall so be retained.

REASON

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 3



To ensure the continued availability of external amenity space for residents of the
development, in the interests of their amenity and the character of the area in accordance
with policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

10 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The development shall not be occupied until details of defensible space to the front of
ground floor habitable room windows have been submitted to, and approved in writing by,
the Local Planning Authority and no flat shall be occupied until the approved details for that
unit have been implemented. Thereafter the approved details shall be retained and
maintained for the life of the development.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in exercising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with the London Plan (March 2016).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national guidance

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(ii) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 4



BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2016) Housing Choice

LPP 7.2 (2016) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality
The application site comprises the front part of 17 Peachey Lane, Cowley, which is an
irregular shaped parcel being approximately 0.074ha in size.

Access to the site is from Peachey Lane using the existing vehicle crossover to the south
east corner of the site.

The site comprises a tapering area being 28 metres wide at its junction with Peachey Lane

and reducing to 9 metres wide at its northern boundary. The northern boundary backs on to
a site referred to as the 'rear of 17 Peachey Lane', which fronts Bosanquet Close.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 5



The site falls gently from south to north. There are no trees on the site. A single storey
detached bungalow currently resides to the front of the site, which is in a poor state of
repair. The existing property is not a typical dwelling type in this area.

The site forms the western end of a row of two-storey housing. A public reserve, referred to
as Kingdom Way, is to the immediate west of the site. To the north west of the site is a row
of one-bed terraced properties. These properties form the end of the Bosanquet Close cul-
de-sac. To the north east of the site is the Carlton Court flatted development. The adjoining
properties are all two-storey brick construction under tiled roofs. To the south of the site,
the adjacent side of Peachey Lane is two-storey housing.

The site has a PTAL of 1b.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Full planning permission is sought for the erection of a two storey detached
buildingcomprising two 2-bed flats and three 1-bed flats with provision for seven parking
spaces, the relocation of the vehicular crossover and the demolition of the existing
dwelling. The proposed residential building would be located to the front of 17 Peachey
Lane, with parking at the front of the building and communal amenity space to the rear.

The 1-bed flats would be provided on the ground floor and the 2-bed flats would be provided
on the first floor. The 1-bed flats would comprise a bedroom, kitchen, lounge/dining and
bathroom. The 2-bed flats would comprises two bedrooms, one which has an ensuite,
kitchen, lounge/dining and bathroom. All flats would be accessed via a common central
lobby.

A bin store would be provided the front western corner of the site. Cycle storage would be
provided to the rear of the site, which backs on the 9 Bosanquet Close and the rear
amenity space of a proposed residential development at the 'rear of 17 Peachey Lane',
currently being assessed by the Council (discussed further in the Planning History section
of this report).

Communal amenity space would be provided to the rear of the units. A paved path leading
from the front to the rear of the site would be provided along the eastern boundary. New
soft and hard landscaping would take place throughout the site, including defensive planting
to the north and south of the ground floor flats and landscaping to the front of the site
between the road front and car parking area. 'Flat 1', on the ground floor would have private
patio space. The plans indicate three larger trees to the rear of the site. Parking space for
seven cars would be provided at the front of the site on a 1:1 basis, with two spaces
allocated to each 2-bed flat and one spaces allocated to each 1-bed flat. The parking area
would require the relocation of the existing vehicular crossover, from the

eastern corner to the centre of the frontage.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
There is no planning history relevant to this site.

This application was submitted in 2009 for a two-storey building comprising 4 two-bed and
2 one-bed flats, including 6 parking spaces and the demolition of the existing dwelling.
Post discussions with the Local Planning Authority, the applicant resubmitted a revised
scheme for a two-storey building comprising 2 two-bed flats and 3 one-bed flat, including 7
parking spaces and the demolition of the existing dwelling.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 6



A two storey two-bed flatted scheme to the 'rear of 17 Peachey Lane, fronting Bosanquet
Close is currently being assessed by the Council (ref: 66644/APP/2009/2784). The rear
amenity space of this application would share a property boundary with the proposed rear
amenity space of the Peachey Lane site.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1

(2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM2

AM7
AM13

AM14
BE13
BE15
BE19
BE20
BE21

BE22

BEZ23
BE24
BE38

H4
OE1

OE3
OE5
OE8

HDAS-LAY

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Mix of housing units

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures
Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 7



Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 3.8 (2016) Housing Choice

LPP 7.2 (2016) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

This application was originally consulted 18 January 2010. Post discussions with the Local Planning
Authority the applicant resubmitted a revised scheme. This was reconsulted 4 August 2010.

30 nearby owners/occupiers were consulted on the application. The same owners/occupiers were
reconsulted:

As part of the first consultation, one petition and five objections were received.
As part of the second consultation, three objections were received.

The petition, submitted by the Cowley Community Residents' Association, combines two
applications submitted to the Council, this application and another relating to the 'rear of 17 Peachey
Lane' (ref: 66644/APP/2009/2784, two storey building comprising 2 two-bedroom flats, including
parking provision).

PETITION:

The petition, with 140 signatures, raised the following concerns/issues:

(i) The two planning applications would result in over development of the site;
(ii) Potential for development to encroach on boundary of neighbouring properties;
(iif) Dangerous access due to narrowing of bridge from Peachey Lane;

(iv) An increase in traffic generated from the site causing traffic congestion;
(v) Danger to pedestrians;

(vi) Inappropriate siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings;

(vii) Parking facilities will cause noise sensitivity to neighbours;

(viii) Inadequate parking provision for disabled persons;

(ix) Inadequate accessibility for refuse/recycling collection;

(x) Loss of daylight to neighbouring properties;

(xi) Loss of privacy to neighbouring properties;

(xii) Loss of topographical landscape features;

(xiii) Development does not improve or complement the character of the area;

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 8



Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2010

OFFICER COMMENT:

Whilst is acknowledged that the petition has raised concerns/issues resulting either from a
combination of the two proposed developments on the site or specifically the 17 Peachey Lane
scheme, all of the above points, with regard to this application, have been addressed through the
report, or by way of recommended conditions.

OBJECTIONS:
The individual objections raised the following concerns/issues:

(i) Concern that the increased density on site would result in an increase in vehicle usage and
demand for on-street parking within a restricted parking area as a result of overspill from the limited
provision of off-street parking;

(ii) The proposal would 'shore-horn' two blocks of flats into a narrow site, noting that one block of
flats would be more suitable for the site as the two block development (this planning application
and ref: 6664/APP/2009/2784) would result in overlooking and loss of privacy for the surrounding
properties;

(i) Concern that the scheme is an overdevelopment of the site and not in keeping with the
surrounding area, that sunlight would be reduced for 16 Peachey Lane as well as overlooking and
loss of light to the rear amenity of 9 Bosanquet Close;

(iv) That the proposed rear amenity would not be in keeping with the surrounding properties;

(v) Line of Site: the proposed development would protrude beyond the line of the existing buildings.
16 Peachey Lane, currently the last two-storey property along the row of housing, note that planning
permission has twice been rejected for their property due to line of sight.

(vi) Parking and traffic safety issues: noting that the entrance to the site is on the brow of a
dangerous sloping 90 degree turn in the road. Any new entrance would make the situation, on
already busy road, more dangerous.

OFFICER COMMENT:
All of the above points have been addressed through this report, or by way of recommended
conditions.

Internal Consultees

TREES & LANDSCAPE OFFICER
The Council's Trees and Landscaping Officer has reviewed the application and notes the following:

The proposal is an amended scheme which seeks to address previous officer comments. The
current proposal indicate, diagrammatically, that six trees are to be planted at the northern end of the
site, and various shrubs/hedging are to be planted at the southern part of the site. It is noted that no
details are provided.

The current proposal also includes a re-configured car park arrangement in the front 'garden' which
will minimise the area of hard-standing required to accommodate 7No. off-street parking spaces. It
is noted that a minor amendment to the layout will be required to ensure that a wheelchair
accessible space is provided. Ideally, the pavement next to space ref. F1 should be level with the
parking space. Alternatively, the planting strip and footpath access adjacent to car space F3 could

Elsewhere, space has been created to accommodate a wall with hedging, or other ornamental
planting, along the front boundary. Forward of the front elevation there is space and opportunity for

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



planting along the side boundaries. Planted areas in front of all ground floor windows will provide
physical separation and 'defensible space' between the ground floor occupants and people using the
external areas. The bin stores have been sited discretely away from the front/public boundary with
the opportunity to screen the store with soft landscape. The cycle store has been located in a
discrete (and secure) location at the end of the rear garden.

The Council's Trees and Landscaping Officer raises not objection, subject to the following
comments and conditions:

(1) Saved policy BE38 seeks landscape enhancement of sites in association with their development.
The layout and indicative landscape of this scheme creates space and opportunity for high quality
hard and soft landscaping, subject to detail, which can be conditioned.

(2) DCLG/EA guidance requires hard-standing in front gardens to comply with SUDS
recommendations. This should be specified as part of the hard landscape details.

(3) The success of the landscape scheme will depend on the appropriate management and
maintenance of the landscape (hard and soft) to ensure that the scheme establishes, and is
maintained, in accordance with the design objectives. The development of flats indicates that the
external spaces are likely to be managed communally, possibly through a management company.
Management and maintenance should be safeguarded by condition.

ACCESSIBILITY OFFICER

The Council's Accessibility Officer has assessed the application; with reference to London Plan
Policy 3A.5 (Housing Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document "Accessible
Hillingdon" adopted January 2010.

The Council's Accessibility Officer has the following access observations:

1. The parking layout and landscape design should be conducive to Lifetime Home principles. To
this end, car parking spaces should be a minimum of 2.4 m x 4.8 m, with scope to increase the
width of bays by 1.2 m (e.g. removing a grass verge in future).

2. Car parking spaces should be allocated to a specific unit, allowing a disabled occupant to choose
whether the bay is marked as an accessible space at a future stage.

3. It is unclear whether a level approach to the building and an accessible threshold have been
incorporated into the design. Details of levels and an accessible threshold that is suitable to prevent
water ingress would be required.

4. The design of communal areas, in blocks containing five flats or less, should allow for an
enclosed wheelchair platform lift to be installed at a later date.

5. The internal hallways are approximately 1050mm wide. To comply with the Lifetime Home
Standards, internal doors should provide an effective clear width of 775 mm. Plans should be
amended to demonstrate compliance.

6. The bathroom layouts, to include all bathroom furniture proposed, should be shown on plan. The
bathrooms/ensuite facilities should be designed in accordance with Lifetime Home standards. At
least 700mm should be provided to one side of the WC, with 1100 mm provided between the front
edge of the toilet pan and a door or wall opposite.

7. To allow bathrooms to be used as wet rooms in future, plans should indicate floor gulley drainage.

On the proviso that the above comments can be dealt with by planning condition, no objection would
be raised on the grounds of accessibility.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



OFFICER COMMENT: These matters are covered by recommended conditions.

HIGHWAYS OFFICER
The Council's Highways Officer has reviewed the application and notes the following:

(i) That the plans indicate 2.0m visibility splays. Visibility splays should be 2.4m by 2.4m. That road
width and visibility sight lines are sufficient to provide for a car parking area at this location and
maintain Highways safety;

(i) The site is located within a 1b PTAL. Hillingdon Car Parking Standards require a maximum
provision of 1.5 car parking spaces for each 2-bed unit and 1 car parking space for each 1-bed unit,
within a 1b PTAL.

(iii) Given the low PTAL it is considered that parking provision of seven spaces on a 1:1 basis is
adequate in this instance.

(iv) It is not considered that the proposal would be to the detriment of the wider highway network.
The Council's Highways Officer raises no objection subject to a condition ensuring the provision of
2.4m by 2.4m visibility splays. It is considered that this can be addressed by way of a condition.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION OFFICER

The Council's Contaminated Land Officer has reviewed the application and notes that the application
site is located adjacent to an infilled railway cutting and a former sewage works, parts of which may
have also been infilled.

As such, the Council's Contaminated Land Officer recommends that as a precaution, if minded to
grant this application, a Gas Condition would be appropriate.

Subject to a Gas Condition to minimise risk of contamination from garden and landscape area, and
a Construction Site Informative, the Council's Contaminated Land Officer considers the scheme to
be acceptable in terms of Saved Policy OE11 of the UDP.

WASTE MANAGEMENT OFFICER
As part of the revised scheme, a bin storage area has been provided to the immediate west of the
frontage to 17 Peachey Lane.

The Council's Waste Management Officer has reviewed the application and notes that:

(i) The bin storage area for the dwelling houses should incorporate provision for 2 bags of recycling
and 2 bags of refuse per week, plus 3 garden waste bags every 2 weeks;

(ii) The bin storage area should provide one 1100 litre bin for recycling and one 1100 litre bin for
refuse, as a minimum. The dimensions of a 1100 litre bin is 1570mm (H), 1260mm (L), 985mm (W);
and

(iii) Each unit should have a food waste grinder, as standard as part of the kitchen unit sink, to
allow residents to indirectly recycle their food wastes by grinding it and washing it down into the
waste water system for composting by the relevant water company.

EDUCATION & CHILDREN'S SERVICE OFFICER

The Council's Education & Children's Service Officer has reviewed the application and notes that
this scheme will require an education s106 contribution of £11,649. Funds are sought to provide
local school places for the additional nursery, primary, secondary and post-16 school children that
would be generated from this scheme.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



S106 OFFICER

The Council's s106 Officers has reviewed the application and notes that Education would be the
only contribution required and should be secured via Grampian Agreement, as per standard
practice, prior to determining the application.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site is located within the Developed Area as shown on the Unitary Development Plan
Proposals Map. Furthermore, the site does not fall in a Conservation Area or Area of
Special Local Character.

The London Plan Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (April 2010) was
published following the national advice above and represents the Mayor of London's
guidance on how applications for development on garden land should be treated within the
London Region. The thrust of the guidance is that back gardens contribute to the objectives
of a significant number of London Plan policies and these matters should be taken into
account when considering the principle of such developments.

The guidance requires that "In implementing London Plan housing policies and especially
Policy 3A.3, the Mayor will, and Boroughs and other partners are advised when considering
development proposals which entail the loss of garden land, to take full account of the
contribution of gardens to achievement of London Plan policies on:

* local context and character including the historic and built environment;

* safe, secure and sustainable environments;

* bio diversity;

* trees;

* green corridors and networks;

* flood risk;

* climate change including the heat island effect, and

* enhancing the distinct character of suburban London, and carefully balance these policy
objectives against the generally limited contribution such developments can make toward
achieving housing targets."

The site comprises of a single dwelling and large garden area which extends to Bosanquet
Close. The proposed building will be erected within an area of the site which has already
been developed. The proposal would be larger (occupying a greater footprint) than the
existing dwelling, on balance it is not considered that the net increase in site coverage as a
result of this scheme would cause such harm as to be contrary Policies 3A.3, 4B.1 and
4B.8 of the London Plan, guidance within The London Plan Interim Housing Supplementary
Planning Guidance and Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing.

No objection is raised in principle to the redevelopment of the site for residential purposes.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3A.2 of the London Plan seeks to ensure that new development achieves 'the
maximum intensity of use compatible with local context, the design principle in Policy 4B.1
and with public transport capacity. Boroughs should develop residential density policies in
their DPDs in line with this policy and adopt the residential density ranges set out in Table
3A.2 and which are compatible with sustainable residential quality.'

The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 1b. The London Plan (2008)
range for sites with a PTAL of 0-1 in a suburban area is 150-200 habitable rooms per
hectare and 50-75 units per hectare, based on an average of 2.8 habitable rooms per unit.
The proposed 2-bed units would have 4 habitable rooms; Bedroom 1, Bedroom 2 and a

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

large Lounge. The proposed 1-bed units would have 2 habitable rooms; Bedroom 1 and a
Lounge. As such, based on a total site area of 0.074ha the site would have a residential
density of 68 units per hectare and 189 habitable rooms per hectare.

The application site is within the guidelines of the London Plan with regard to both units per
hectare and the number of habitable rooms per hectare. It is noted that Bosanquet Close is
developed at a similar density to that proposed.

The proposals would not therefore be contrary to Policies 3A.3 and 4B.1 of the London
Plan.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this development.The site does not fall within an Archaeological Priority
Area and there are no Conservation Areas, listed buildings, or Areas of Special Local
Character within the vicinity.

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this development. There is no requirement to consult with the
airportsafeguarding authorities in this instance.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this development.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The surrounding area is largely characterised by a mix of semi-detached and detached two
storey properties.

The proposed development is similar to the size, scale and mass of surrounding buildings
it is considered that the development is in keeping with the character and appearance of
surrounding development, and would not appear incongruous to its surroundings.

The proposed development would have a similar building line to properties along the
northern side of Peachey Lane, as such it is not considered that the proposed development
would have a significant impact on the visual amenities of the street scene in this location.

Accordingly, it is considered that the proposed development would be in keeping with the
character and appearance of the surrounding area and its visual impact on the street
scene is acceptable in accordance with policies BE13 and BE19 of the UDP.

Impact on neighbours

Policy BE20 and BE21 of the Saved Policies UDP seek to resist proposals which would
cause an unacceptable loss of light or would have an overbearing impact detrimental to the
residential amenity of neighbouring properties. The HDAS - Residential layouts provides
further guidance on the issue of dominance seeking a separation distance of 15m where a
two storey building abuts a neighbouring property.

The rear of the application site would abut the rear gardens servicing 9-13 Bosanquet
Close and the currently vacant 'rear of 17 Peachey Lane' site. The proposed building would
be located 20m from the closest point of both 9 Bosanquet Close and the 'rear of 17
Peachey Lane', and as such would be in accordance with HDAS Guidance.

The proposed building would be located over 30m from Peachey Lane properties on the
opposite side of the road (18-24 Peachey Lane) and over 40m from 14 Abbotts Close, and
as such would not have a dominant impact on the occupiers of these properties.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



The proposed building is 1 metre from the boundary of the neighbouring property, 16
Peachey Lane. The proposed building is also sited so that it would not cause any undue
loss of light or shadowing to the above mentioned neighbouring properties to the detriment
of residential amenity, sufficient to justify refusal.

Accordingly, the scheme would comply with Policies BE20 and BE21 of the Saved Policies
UDP.

Policy BE24 of the Saved Policies UDP seeks to protect the privacy of occupiers and
neighbours. The HDAS - Residential Layouts provides further guidance that within a 45
degree line from the centre of a habitable room window there should be no facing habitable
room windows within 21m in order to avoid loss of privacy to either occupier.

There are no habitable rooms proposed on the eastern elevation. The only windows
proposed on the ground floor and first floor of the eastern elevation, facing 16 Peachey
Lane, is a bathroom window on the ground floor and an ensuite window on the first floor
(non-habitable rooms). As such it is considered, there would be no resulting loss of
privacy to these properties as a result of the proposal. A 45-degree line taken from the
closest neighbouring habitable room, 16 Peachey Lane, does not intersect with any part of
the proposed building. A 1800mm high close-boarded fence is proposed around the
boundary of the site. If minded to grant this planning permission, it is considered any issue
of overlooking can be dealt with by an obscure glazing condition for the bathroom windows
to the eastern elevation.

Accordingly, given the positioning of the proposed building, it is not considered this would

result in direct overlooking or loss of privacy for neighbouring occupiers to warrant refusal,

and accordingly would comply with Policy BE24 of the Saved Policies UDP in this regard.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The Council's Supplementary Planning Document on Residential Layouts states that a
minimum of 63m? internal floor space should be provided for two bedroom flats and a
minimum of 50m2 internal floor space should be provided for one bedroom flats. The floor
areas of all units meet these guidelines.

Policies BE20 and BE24 of the UDP require that all proposed units benefit from adequate
privacy and light. All windows would receive adequate daylight and the amenities of future
occupiers would not be prejudiced by the position of adjoining houses. As such, it is
considered that the proposed property would adequately serve the needs of future
occupiers in terms of internal space.

The Council's Supplementary Planning Document on Residential Layouts states that a
minimum of 25m? amenity space should be provided for 2-bedroom flats and a minimum of
20m2 amenity space should be provided for 1-bedroom flats, in accordance with Policy
BE23 of the UDP, which seeks the provision of satisfactory usable amenity space for
future occupiers. As such, a total of at least 110m? usable amenity space should be
provided for this development. With a total provision of approximately 220m? of communal
garden area to the rear of the site alone; the proposal exceeds these guidelines. Access to
the communal rear amenity area would be by way of a paved path along the eastern
boundary of the site.

In addition, three separate patio areas are proposed for the three ground floor 1-bedroom

flats. The patio area for 'Flat 1' has an area of approximately 14m2, is bound by defensible
planting and is completely private. The patio area for 'Flat 2' and 'Flat 3' has an area of

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



approximately 8m2 and 7m2 respectively. Both patios open up on to the rear shared
garden. If minded to grant this application, it is considered that the privacy of the patios for
'Flat 2' and 'Flat 3' can be secured by way of a boundary enclosure condition.

The rear of the ground floor flat fronting the rear amenity area and not part of the two patios
would be separated by hedging, which is considered adequate to ensure a defensible
space is maintained between the ground floor residence and users of the communal
garden area.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Seven car parking spaces would be provided towards the front part of the site on a 1:1
basis, and cycle storage would be provided to the rear of site.

Public consultation comments noted concern that the proposed development would result
in an increase in on street parking from potential overspill of off street parking.

The London Plan parking standard requires a maximum of 1 or less than 1 parking space
per unit. Whilst London Plan parking standards are only to be applied when there is no
Hillingdon standard available, it is considered that the London Plan parking standards may
also be relevant to the assessment of this application.

It is considered that due to the relatively small size of the units (50sgm and 63sgm) and
that each individual unit would have a parking space, that 2 standard parking spaces for the
2-bedroom flats and 1 standard parking space for the 1-bedroom flats, as proposed, is an
adequate number to provide for a 5 unit development comprising two 2-bedroom units and
three 1-bedroom units within a 1b PTAL area.

The Council's Highway Engineer raises no objection to the proposal subject to a condition
relating to visibility splays being 2.4m by 2.4m, not 2.0m as indicated in the plans
submitted.

Accordingly, subject to a visibility splays condition, it is considered that the provision of
seven car parking spaces is acceptable and would not be detrimental to the highways
safety or wider road network. As such, it is considered that the proposal complies with
Policy AM7 and AM14 of the UDP.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

Issues of design have been largely discussed in part 7.07 of the report.

The proposed building materials would comprise render, brick, concrete tiled roofs and
uPVC windows. The elevational treatment continues the render detailing of the adjoining
properties along Peachey Lane before reverting to brick work, which is typical of the
treatment of the properties in Bosanquet Close to the North.

The size, siting scale and mass of the building is considered to be acceptable in this
location and the design, including materials and fenestration, would reflect elements of
surrounding properties in keeping with the character and appearance of the area. As such,
the scheme is considered to be acceptable on design grounds.

Issue of access are address within the Disabled Access section of this report.
In relation to security, the application would maintain secure boundary treatments with

neighbouring properties and it is not considered that there are any security concerns
intrinsic to the design. Entry to the development would be controlled by either electronic or

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



audio security access. All windows would be to BS:7590. The cycle store would have
digilocks to their respective doors. Boundary fencing would comprise 1800mm high
closeboarded fencing and defensive landscaping is proposed throughout the site.
Therefore, subject to a condition requiring that the development achieve 'Secured by
Design' standards the proposal is considered to be acceptable in this regard.

7.12 Disabled access

Policy 3A.5 of the London Plan and HDAS - Accessible Hillingdon require that all new
dwellings be designed to Lifetime Homes standards. It is considered that Life Time Homes
standards could be dealt with by way of condition should approval be granted.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The application is below the threshold at which affordable housing should be sought under
Policy 3A.10 of the London Plan and the Council's adopted Planning Obligations SPD, nor
is it considered that a higher level of development could be achieved on this site.

Accordingly, the proposal does not give rise to the need for affordable housing provision for
a development of this size and consideration of these matters is not necessary.
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Policy BE38 of the UDP requires new planting and landscaping, small/medium sized trees
should be incorporated into the plans to mitigate the visual impact of the development.

The existing trees on this site do not constrain its development. The site is not covered by
a TPO nor inside a Conservation Area.

The plans indicate, diagrammatically, that six trees are to be planted at the Northern end of
the site, and various shrubs/hedging are to be planted at the Southern part of the site.
However, there are no details provided. Furthermore, the borders, surrounding the car park
which will contain the shrubs/hedging will need to be at least 1m wide, and should also
contain 2-3 medium sized trees.

In accordance with Saved Policy BE38, trees and shrubs/hedging should be incorporated
into the plans to mitigate the visual impact of the development. The parking area has since
been revised and the entrance has been relocated from the eastern corner to the centre of
the frontage. This allows for both more parking spaces and landscaping to be incorporated
into the scheme.

Subiject to relevant conditions securing appropriate landscaping, it is considered that this
scheme is acceptable in terms of the Saved Policy BE38 of the UDP.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

Policy 4A.22 of the London Plan requires that all new development provide adequate
facilities for the storage of waste and recycling.

The plans indicate that refuse storage would be provided to the front of the site in the
western corner.

The Council's Waste Strategy Department has reviewed the scheme and suggests that
the development should provide storage space for two bags of recycling and two bags of
refuse (collection per week) as well as three garden waste bags (collection every 2
weeks), and that one 1100 litre Euro recycling bin and one 1100 litre Euro waste bin, as
indicated on the submitted the plans, would suffice.

A refuse storage area, large enough to accommodate the above, is proposed.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



Accordingly, subject to conditions, it is considered that this scheme is acceptable in terms
of Policy 4A.22 of the London Plan.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

The submitted documentation does not provide any detailed comment on the general
sustainability credentials of the proposed design, however in accordance with the Council's
standard practice for schemes below 10 residential units it is considered that the
imposition of a condition requiring that the development achieves Code level 3 for
Sustainable Homes would result in an appropriate level of sustainable design in line with
the intention of Policies 4A.1, 4A.3, 4A.7 and 4A.16 of the London Plan.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The application site is not located in an area with an identified risk of flooding and no issues
regarding flooding have been identified, however Policy OE8 of the UDP and Policy 4A.14
of the London Plan still require that developments seek to reduce surface water run-off and
reduce the risk of flooding elsewhere.

Concrete block pavers that drain to a sustainable drainage system are proposed for the car
parking area and access roadway. It is considered that this would adequately address any
issues of surface water run-off as such no objection is raised to the development in terms
of drainage of flood risk.

Building control regulations on this matter will also need to be complied with.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

It is not considered that the provision of five residential units on this site will lead to
significant noise or air quality issues.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

This is addressed in 6.1 of the report.
7.20 Planning obligations

Policy R17 of the UDP states that the Local Planning Authority will, where appropriate, seek
to supplement the provision of recreation open space, facilities to support arts, culture and
entertainment activities and other community, social and education facilities through
planning obligations in conjunction with other development proposals. The Director of
Education has advised that a contribution of £11,649 towards school places is required.
These funds are sought to provide local school places for the additional nursery, primary,
secondary and post-16 school children that will be generated from this scheme. This
contribution can be secured by an appropriate planning condition should approval be
granted.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable.
7.22 Other Issues

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

In conclusion, it is considered that the proposed development would not be out of keeping
with the character or appearance of the surrounding area, or impact on the amenity of

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



adjoining properties.

As such, it is considered that the proposed development complies with the relevant UDP
and London Plan policies, and approval is recommended.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2

The London Plan (2016)

Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'
National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Matt Kolaszewski Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



~ avox Noriy

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Land at 17 Peachey Lane

Cowley

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
66643/APP/2009/2783 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Central and S%Hé 0 September 2016

. ~ILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address MANOR COURT HIGH STREET HARMONDSWORTH

Development: Change of use of existing building to a house in multiple occupation (HMO),

including retention of 10 bed sitting units with parking for 7 cars for a
temporary period of three years (application for full Planning Permission)

LBH Ref Nos: 25525/APP/2016/1091

Drawing Nos: P/HMOMCH/020 B (Landscape Plan’

MC/16/HMO/L10 (Proposed Cycle and Refuse Store!

MC/16/HMO/EXO01 (Existing Site Plan

MC/16/HMO/L0O1D (Proposed Site Plan’

MC/16/HMO/L02B (Basement Floor Plan’

MC/16/HMO/L0O3C (Ground Floor Plan

MC/16/HMO/L04B (First Floor Plan’

MC/16/HMO/L05B (Second Floor Plan

MC/16/HMO/L06 (Elevation 1 South Facing

MC/16/HMO/LO7 (Elevation 2 West Facing’

MC/16/HMO/LO8 (Elevation 3 North Facing

MC/16/HMO/L09 (Elevation 4 East Facing

Parking Statement, prepared by Milestone Transport Planning dated Marcl
2016

Pre Application Heritage Assessment, prepared by HeritageCollective datec
May 2015

Unnumbered Survey Floor Plans

Date Plans Received: 16/03/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 16/03/2016
Date Application Valid: 16/03/2016 18/05/2016
1. SUMMARY

This application seeks planning permission for the change of use of the existing building
known as Manor Lodge, which forms a part of the wider Manor Court complex in
Harmondsworth, to a house in multiple occupation (HMO) to include the retention of 10
bedsits with seven parking spaces for a temporary period of three years. It also proposes
minor alterations to the external landscape.

It should be noted that although the building is Grade Il Listed, as no physical alterations
are proposed to its fabric, a parallel application for Listed Building Consent is not required
in this instance.

The applicant has advised that temporary permission is sought for a period of three years
only, whilst longer-term proposals relating to the use of the whole Manor Court site are
progressed. Indeed, the submitted Design and Access Statement confirms that pre-
application advice relating to the change of use of the entire Manor Court site to provide
high quality housing through the conversion of existing buildings on site has already been
sought. With specific regard to Manor Lodge, the Design and Access Statement confirms
that it is proposed to split the building into two dwellings and, as such, the use of the
property as an HMO is an interim measure only.

It should be noted that on visiting the site 13 bedsits were found. Whilst it is understood

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



that this has now reduced back to 10 and that the internal layout is as per the proposed
plans, it must be noted that should planning permission be granted and the development
found to not be in accordance with the approved plans this would be dealt with as a
separate enforcement matter and should have no bearing on the determination of this
application.

No objections are raised to the principle of the development in this location, particularly
given the proposed temporary nature of the use sought. No external physical alterations
are proposed to the building itself and comments from the Council's Conservation and
Urban Design Officer regarding the external landscape have been taken fully on board to
ensure the development has no detrimental impact on the setting of the listed building.
The scheme complies with current guidelines and policies relating to residential amenity
and, furthermore, the proposed parking provision is considered to be acceptable.

The proposal is considered to comply with relevant local, London Plan and national
planning policies and guidelines relating to residential development and, accordingly,
approval is recommended.

2. RECOMMENDATION

1 T5 Temporary Use - Discontinuance and Reinstatement

The use hereby permitted shall be discontinued and the land restored to its former
condition within three years of the date of this consent.

REASON

In order to encourage a suitable permanent use of the site, which would be more reflective
of its original use, will ensure the long-term management, maintenance and upkeep of the
Grade Il Listed Building and complement the sensitive nature of the site and the
surrounding conservation area, in accordance with policy HE1 of the Local Plan: Part 1
Strategic Policies (November 2012), policies BE4 and BES8, BE9 and BE12 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and policy 7.8 of
the London Plan (2016).

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers P/HMOMCH/020 B,
MC/16/HMO/L01D, MC/16/HMO/L02B, MC/16/HMO/L03C, MC/16/HMO/L04B,
MC/16/HMO/L05B, MC/16/HMO/L06, MC/16/HMO/L07,MC/16/HMO/L08, MC/16/HMO/L09
& MC/16/HMO/L10, and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the
development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

3 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping
2.a Hard Surfacing Materials

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (2015).

4 NONSC Use of rooms

At no time shall the basement, communal areas (including the kitchens, living room and
dining room) or the first floor storage room be used to provide bedsit accommodation. The
property shall have a maximum of 10 bedsit units only.

REASON

To safeguard the residential amenity of existing and future occupants in accordance with
policies BE19, BE20 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012), policy 3.5 of the London Plan (2016), the DCLG Technical housing
standards - nationally described space standard and the Council's Supplementary
Planning Guidance on Houses in Multiple Occupation.

5 NONSC Parking

The seven parking bays shall only be used in connection with the use of the property as
bedsit accommodation and for no other use for the duration of the temporary planning
permission.

REASON
To ensure sufficient on-site parking provision is provided in accordance with policies AM7
and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

6 NONSC Refuse

The hereby approved refuse storage, as shown on drawing no.MC/16/HMO/L10, shall be
used only in connection with the use of the property as bedsit accommodation and for no
other use for the duration of the temporary planning permission.

7 NONSC Management Plan

Within one month of the date of this consent a management plan shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate how the HMO will
be managed and maintained to safeguard the residential amenity of its occupants, those
of neighbouring properties and to ensure the long-term upkeep of the property.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



REASON

To safeguard residential amenity and ensure the long-term management and
maintenance of the property in accordance with polices BE4, BE12, BE13, BE19 and
OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

8 NONSC Non Standard Condition

No demolition or development shall take place until a written scheme of investigation
(WSI) has been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. For
land that is included within the WSI, no demolition or

development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed WSI, which shall
include the statement of significance and research objectives, and:

A. The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording and the
nomination of a competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works.

B. The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis,
publication & dissemination and deposition of resulting material. This part of the condition
shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in accordance with the
programme set out in the WSI.

REASON

To ensure the development does not have any adverse impact on archaeological remains,
in accordance with policies BE1 and BE3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012), policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2015) and section 12 of the
NPPF.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

OoL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

BE1 Development within archaeological priority areas

BE3 Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of
archaeological remains

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BES8 Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments
H8 Change of use from non-residential to residential
AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character
LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology
LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in
order to ensure that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an
application which is likely to be considered favourably.

5

With regard to condition 8, the written scheme of investigation will need to be prepared
and implemented by a suitably qualified professionally accredited archaeological practice
in accordance with Historic England's Guidelines for Archaeological Projects in Greater
London. This condition is exempt from deemed discharge under

schedule 6 of The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(England) Order 2015.

6

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



Historic England have advised as follows:
It is envisaged that the archaeological fieldwork would comprise the following:
Watching Brief

A watching brief involves the proactive engagement with the development groundworks to
permit investigation and recording of features of archaeological interest which are
revealed. A suitable working method with contingency arrangements for significant
discoveries will need to be agreed. The outcome will be a report and archive.

Further information on archaeology and planning in Greater London including
Archaeological Priority Areas is available on the Historic England website.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises an approximately 3,808m2 irregularly shaped plot located at
the eastern end of High Street in Harmondsworth. It accommodates Manor Lodge, its
associated grounds and an area of car parking.

Manor Lodge is located at the south of the Manor Court complex, which includes the
historic listed Harmondsworth Great Barn and Granary, together with some sensitively
designed office buildings (1990's) and associated courtyards. It retains its garden setting
with some mature trees around the edges of the site.

Manor Lodge is a Grade Il Listed, mid-19th Century, two-storey villa of yellow stock brick,
with a hipped slate roof. The building was converted from use as a dwelling to offices in
1987. Planning permission was subsequently granted for its conversion to a residential
care home in 2008. Whilst it is understood that conversion work took place the care home
never came into use. Most recently been used as an unauthorised HMO.

The application site is bounded to the north by the Manor Court complex; to the east by the
Grade II* St Mary's Church, its associated graveyard and the Grade Il Listed Five Bells
Public House; to the south by residential properties in Blondell Close and open fields; and
to the west by open fields.

The entire application site falls within the Harmondsworth Village Conservation Area as
designated in the Hillingdon Local Plan. It also falls within an Archaeological Priority Area.
The northern part of the application site, comprising the car park, falls within the Green
Belt.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks planning permission for the change of use of the property to an
HMO, to include the retention of 10 bedsits, for a temporary period of three years.

The building comprises four levels; a basement, ground floor, first floor and roof
accommodation. No alterations are proposed to the basement. At the time of the site visit
the basement was vacant and the plans confirm that there is no intention to use this as
habitable space.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



At ground floor level, the property would accommodate three bedsits, all with en-suite
shower rooms; two kitchens; a dining room; a living room; a laundry room and a communal
WC.

At first floor level, the property would accommodate six bedsits, all with en-suite shower
rooms; a communal bathroom; and a storage room.

At second floor level one bedsit with an en-suite shower room would be provided.

Externally, minor alterations would be made to the landscape, including additional planting,
trees and hedges.

Seven car parking spaces within an existing area of hardstanding would be provided for the
development within the wider Manor Court site, in addition to refuse and cycle storage
facilities, full details of which have been provided.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

27256/APP/2007/2127 Manor Court High Street Harmondsworth

ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY AND TWO STOREY EXTENSIONS TO REAR AND SIDE, A
CHANGE OF USE OF BUILDING FROM OFFICES (CLASS B1) TO RESIDENTIAL CARE HOM
(CLASS C2).

Decision: 29-04-2008 Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Manor Court has an extensive planning history. That most relevant to this application is
summarised above.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (2015)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains
PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:
Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



OoL4
BE1
BE3

BE4

BES8

BE13
BE19
BE20
BE21
BEZ23
BE24
BE38

OE1

OE3
OE5
H8

AM2

AM7
AM14
AM15
LPP 3.5
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.8
LPP 7.16
NPPF

Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings
Development within archaeological priority areas

Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of archaeological
remains

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures
Siting of noise-sensitive developments
Change of use from non-residential to residential

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

(2016) Local character

(2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2016) Green Belt

National Planning Policy Framework

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 12 local owner/occupiers, the Harmonsdworth and Sipson
Residents' Association and the Harmonsdworth Conservtion Area Advisory Panel. Site notices were

also posted.

Five letters of objection, including a 40 signature petition, have been received from local residents.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



The following concerns are raised:

i) It has been operating illegally for a year.

ii) Inappropriate use for a Grade Il listed building, a Conservation Area and a small village.

i) Insufficient parking is damaging to local businesses and organisations as customers and delivery
vehicles can't park. The occupants are not allowed to park on the premises.

iv) Airport taxis displace parking in the village because they can't park in Manor Court.

v) The parking area shown is used by a private "Park and Ride" scheme and a taxi company.

vi) Damage to access roads caused by increased traffic and HGV movements.

vii) Living in one room creates stress and tension for the residents, who lack respect for the Village
and can be verbally and physically abusive.

viii) Occupants and management use the pub's commercial bins and litter the local area.

ix) Insufficient facilities in the village to cater for the number of families there.

x) Unauthorised landscape works were carried out and trees removed, resulting in lost privacy to
neighbours. The landscaping should be reinstated.

xi) Occupants have no respect for the historic assets nearby, increasing risk of damage or
accidental destruction, particularly to the graveyard, which is used as a playground by the children
and the Great Barn.

xii) Density of occupation is too high - single rooms are let to families with children.

xiii) Inadequate access for emergency vehicles.

xiv) Fire exits for the Scout Hut are often blocked by the occupant's vehicles.

xv) Noise from children playing in the grounds is totally intolerable.

xvi) Occupants trespass into adjoining gardens.

xvii) The building was changed to the status of care home, extensions built and trees removed
against the wishes of the village.

xviii) The building designed for 10 will house 39, meaning each room will hold 4 people or up to 30
children and the single kitchen will be shared - the conditions are worse than the detention centre
that was also imposed on Harmondsworth without consultation.

xix) Harmondsworth has a disproportionate amount of this type of accommodation, leading to a
breakdown in community and increased tensions amongst residents.

xx) The owner bought the property in the knowledge of the restrictions in place - the planning
department should reject the application on the basis of the contract they had with the residents in
the previous change of use on this building.

The following concerns are specifically raised by the petition:

"The property is an illegal HMO in the heart of the village, in the curtilage of a grade 1 listed building.
Experience has proved this building is not appropriate for a HMO. It is anti social to the buildings
surrounding it. This village currently has a large number of legal and illegal HMOs. Harmondsworth is
already under significant stress, due to the threat of airport expansion. This type of property does not
contribute to this community due to the constant turnover of tenants and the problems that brings.

It is totally inappropriate to have HMOs located within the curtilage of a Grade 1 listed building
because having residential buildings in such close proximity puts this particular historic building at
greater risk of being damaged, or even accidentally destroyed. HASRA constantly remind the
Council that by permitting more houses to be converted to HMOs and allowing new properties to be
constructed within the villages puts additional stress on the minimal services supplied to the
Heathrow Villages. The villages are at crisis point in regards to accessing medical care. We have a
0 in our postcode and we have been informed by NHS England that this digit precludes current
residents for being registered with any West Drayton GP. There is also a massive problem with
rubbish collection. Where homes are being extended to increase their capacity to accommodate
larger numbers of people, vast volumes of rubbish is generated and consequently we see excessive
amounts of black bags and other detritus 'dumped' in unsuitable places. | would be extremely
concerned that mismanaged piles of rubbish could lead to a catastrophic fire and irreparable

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



damage to buildings of extraordinary importance to the nation."

The following general comment was received:
i) Residents should be notified of when this will be reported to Committee.

HARMONDSWORTH AND SIPSON RESIDENTS' ASSOCIATION
The comments made mirror those of the petitioner.

HARMONDSWORTH CONSERVATION ADVISORY PANEL

We have no objection to the granting of temporary planning permission to regularise the current use
of this building but would strongly oppose any attempt to renew this permission or make it
permanent. We are glad to see that formal provision for parking and rubbish collection have been
made as these are issues giving rise to minor problems at present. We hope that a more
appropriate use will be found for this building and for the rest of the site in the near future.

THE FRIENDS OF THE GREAT BARN

| am putting in this submission on behalf of The Friends of The Great Barn at Harmondsworth. We
are against the proposal for an HMO for the following reasons:

1.In Harmondsworth, according to Council records, we have 25 HMO's,which are providing
accommodation for 181 people. However this is a list of the ones that LBH know of. | have been
informed that there is a further 14 HMO's in Pinglestone Close alone which are not recorded by LBH.
This means approx a minimum of a further 56 people in addition to the 181 that we know of. As the
majority of these people come from different backgrounds, it causes a problem for the Village of
Harmondsworth. To concentrate this number of people in such a small area results in conflict
between the different cultures. Harmondsworth, with its population of 1,478 (as per 2011 census)
the increase in population within the Village of Harmondsworth has increased by 16 per cent.This is
excessive growth in a 5 year period. Taking into account that there have been no additional facilities
to assist in this level of expansion.

2. The Great Barn which English Heritage has rated as being of importance to the heritage of our
country as equal to Stonehenge, Hadrian's Wall,Westminster Abbey and Buckingham Palace, we
should be respecting, not only the building but also its surrounds. This application for HMO would put
the Great Barn at risk, either by vandalism or children playing games around the Barn. In my role as
Chairman of the Friends group | must ensure that all possible danger, within reason, is mitigated.
The Manor House is within the curtilage of a Grade 1 listed building and should therefore be treated
as such. The Manor Court building is classified as a C2 building as a care home. The
implementation of the proposed HMO would move it into a Sui Generis category which is not suitable
for this environment. We were opposed to the application to change the use to a Care home as we
felt it was not suitable. This has been proved to be correct as the building was never used as a care
home. We were also against the application for an extension to the Manor Farm House which the
Council allowed. Again this was never used by the applicant.

3. There have been a number of issues between residents of the Manor Court building resulting in
clashes between residents. This is most likely caused by the high number of people being housed in
one building.

4. The proposal of 7 parking slots (5 slots plus 2 disabled) will only serve to increase the parking and
confrontation between the residents and local people and business as some parking will be needed
for those who are not allocated a slot.

5. Harmondsworth is an historic village dating back beyond the Doomsday Book. Over the years we
have developed a community which comes together for a number of events such as Jubilee, WW1,
Queens 90th and others. All people of different backgrounds are always welcome to these events
and are encouraged to take part. We are all proud of our village and will fight to keep it rural. We
have welcomed people from all over the world. What we are against is the use of an historical site

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



being used to the detriment of the listed buildings that reflect the history that is Harmondsworth, A
Saxon Village.

BAA SAFEGUARDING
No objection.

HISTORIC ENGLAND
There is no requirement to consult Historic England on this application.

GREATER LONDON ARCHAEOLOGICAL ADVISORY SERVICE (GLAAS)

The site lies in an area where highly significant archaeological remains, dating from the
prehistoric through to the medieval periods have been recorded. The site also lies close to the
medieval grade | listed Great Barn.

The change of use of the existing building will not have had an archaeological impact. The
submitted landscape proposals plan and the proposed cycle and refuse plan show that any
below ground impacts are likely to be localised and small scale, however, given the
archaeological significance of the site, an archaeological watching brief should be carried out
during all works which would have a below ground impact.

Appraisal of this application using the Greater London Historic Environment Record and

information submitted with the application indicates that the development is likely to cause

some harm to archaeological interest but not sufficient to justify refusal of planning

permission provided that a condition is applied to require an investigation to be undertaken

to advance understanding. The archaeological interest should be conserved by attaching a
condition requiring the submission of a written scheme of investigation, prior to the carrying out of
any works.

METROPOLITAN POLICE
No objection subject to the standard Secure By Design condition.

Internal Consultees

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT
No objection.

ACCESS OFFICER
There are no accessibility issues raised by the proposal.

TREES/LANDSCAPE OFFICER

The site lies within the area covered by TPO30.

Other trees are protected by virtue of their location within the Harmonsdsworth Village Conservation
Area.

- No trees or other landscape features of merit will be affected by the proposal.

- The submission includes a Landscape Plan, ref. LP/HMOMCH/020 A, by DCCLA.

- This incorporates new planting of trees and hedges together with a new grass management
proposal to create wildflower meadows, together with the retention of close mown areas closer to
the building.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



- The landscape plan includes hard and soft detailing, plant schedules and a brief specification.

- In order to establish and maintain the soft landscape in accordance with the proposals it will be
necessary to provide a management plan to inform the future management and maintenance of the
site.

- Due to the nature of the use of the building, it will be necessary to arrange a maintenance contract
to be managed and monitored by the landlord or their agent.

- If the application is recommended for approval, a landscape management condition should be
imposed to ensure that the proposals preserve and enhance the character of the site in accordance
with the landscape proposals.

Recommendation: No objection, subject to the above observations and RES9 (landscaping) (part 4).

FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER
The site lies in Flood Zone 1 (little or no risk). Therefore there are no objections to this change of
use.

However the proposal includes the alteration of external space to provide car parking. Therefore a
condition requiring the submission of a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management
is requested to ensure that surface water is managed appropriately, and the likelihood of flooding in
the area not increased.

Officer comment: The seven proposed car parking spaces comprise a part of an existing car park
within the wider Manor Court complex. Aerial photographs indicate the area has been in use as car
parking since at least 2008 and, accordingly, with the exception of very minor alterations to the hard
landscape within the garden area of the site, no new hardstanding would be created as part of this
development. Imposition of a condition in this regard is not therefore considered to be necessary or
reasonable in this instance.

CONSERVATION AND URBAN DESIGN OFFICER

1) There are no objections in principle to the temporary use as an HMO in listed buildings terms.

2) LBC cannot be given retrospectively for any works to the listed building, approvals will run from
the date of any approval.

3) This application should only cover those works required for the new use.

4) The floor plan will need to be updated to show the works undertaken to the building as all rooms
are now used as letting rooms and as such there have been some minor changes to the internal
layout, such as the closing off of a doorway at ground floor level.

5) The secondary glazing is not as approved and is an issue as it disrupts the appearance of the
sash windows. Internal vertical sliding secondary glazing was approved previously, which would
have mirrored the sashes externally. The current system comprises horizontal sliding window units
that meet in the middle of the sashes, such a system would not have been considered as
acceptable in listed building terms.

6) The screening to the southern site boundary needs to be increased to provide greater privacy to
the adjacent dwelling.

7) The new area of patio/terracing should be relocated to the rear of the property to the area
previously covered with concrete paving- this will encourage activity associated with occupants to
take place in the more private area of the garden. The surfacing will need to be appropriate and
match the colour/texture, proportions and bonding pattern of the existing natural York Stone flags.
8) It is suggested that the planting plan is kept simple and in a form that is easily managed and
maintained.

9) Details of the bike and bin stores will be required, ideally new planting should be included to
screen them.

9) The Heritage Statement refers to a previous pre-application proposal and is not relevant to this

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



scheme, which actually proposes very little change to the fabric and structure of the historic
buildings.

Officer comments: No physical alterations are proposed to the property itself as part of this
application and, as such, a parallel application for Listed Building Consent has been withdrawn.
Whilst at the time of the site visit 13 bedsits were in use, it is understood this has now been reduced
to 10 in accordance with the approved plans. The applicant has confirmed that permission is only
sought for 10 bedsits. The unauthorised secondary glazing referred to would be dealt with as a
separate enforcement issue. Amended plans have been received, which show that comments
regarding the external landscape have been taken fully on board. Full details of the refuse and cycle
stores have been provided.

HIGHWAY ENGINEER

The proposal provides 7 car parking spaces including 2 disabled. The Council's maximum parking
standards require 5 spaces. Refuse bins are located within the acceptable distances both from the
highway as well as the walk distance from the the premises.

LANDLORD ENGAGEMENT TEAM
The 1 year lease on this property is coming to an end and is about to be renewed for a further year.

The property currently provides 13 bedrooms, which is how it was presented to the Council by the
management company almost a year ago. Some families are split over two rooms to prevent
overcrowding.

It is used for Emergency Nightly Bed & Breakfast accommodation, which would not typically require
a common room or dining room as all the bedrooms are large enough to accommodate small tables
and chairs and families do not tend to socialise or use common rooms as they have all their TV's
and personal belongings in their rooms. Therefore, this type of accommodation doesn't operate as a
normal HMO would do.

However, it can be guaranteed that three of the rooms will be vacated before the lease end date of
the 11th August 2016 so that 10 bedsits will be provided as per the submitted plans.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The application site comprises a Grade |l Listed Building. Furthermore it falls within a
Conservation Area and partly within the Green Belt. Accordingly, in considering the principle
of the development, due consideration must be given to these land use designations in
addition to the acceptability of the loss of the existing authorised use. It must also be taken
into account that the application only seeks temporary planning permission for a period of
three years whilst longer term proposals are developed.

It is understood that the building was last in use as class B1 offices but that, although never
brought into use, works were undertaken relating to its conversion for use as a care home
following the grant of planning permission for this in 2008. It is arguable which use would
therefore be regarded as lawful but, either way, it is not considered that the loss of these
uses in this location would be contrary to current planning policy such that the use of the
building as an HMO could be deemed unacceptable.

With regard to the loss of B1 office use, the principle of this has already been established
via the 2008 consent (ref: 27256/APP/2007/2127) for conversion of the property into a

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



residential care home. It is not considered that there has been any significant change in
policy since the time of that consent which would mean this is no longer acceptable.

With regard to the loss of a care home use, it must be noted that current planning policies
seek to encourage a wide mix of residential uses to meet housing needs. Accordingly, this
would not in itself preclude the change of use of the site to an alternative residential use.

Furthermore, Local Plan policy H8 generally seeks to support the change of use of non-
residential uses to residential use, providing other Local Plan objectives can be met.

Many residents have suggested that given the heritage importance of the site that use of
the building as an HMO is not appropriate. Current local, London Plan and national planning
policies seek to preserve and protect heritage assets, including Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas. However, they are not prescriptive over the types of use appropriate
for such designations.

Notably, Local Plan: Part 2 Policy BE12 confirms that whilst listed buildings should
"preferably remain in their historic use...an alternative use will be permitted if it is
appropriate to secure the renovation and subsequent preservation of the building."

Whilst, arguably, an alternative residential use might better serve to ensure the long term
preservation, upkeep and maintenance of the building, planning permission is sought on a
temporary basis only and the ongoing use of the site is considered to better guarantee the
upkeep and maintenance of the building in the short-term than it alternatively sitting vacant.
Accordingly, notwithstanding resident concerns on this matter, given the temporary nature
of the use sought, it is not considered that refusal could be justified based on the use of the
site as an HMO.

Local Plan: Part 2 Policy OL4 allows minor alterations to buildings within the Green Belt
providing the development would not significantly impact on the visual amenities or the
openness of the Green Belt. This general principle is reiterated in NPPF paragraph 89.
Only minor alterations are proposed to the external landscape and, accordingly, the
development is considered to comply with the relevant policies in this instance.

On the basis of the above and notwithstanding the Listed Building, Conservation Area and
Green Belt designations applicable to the site, the proposal is considered to comply with
relevant planning policy such that no objections are raised to the principle of the
development, subject to site specific criteria being met.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this type of development.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Manor Lodge is a Grade Il Listed Building. Furthermore the entire application site falls within
the Harmondsworth Village Conservation Area and an Archaeological Priority Area.

Local Plan: Part 2 policies BE8 and BE9 seek to protect the historic fabric, character and
appearance of listed buildings. Policy BE4 seeks to protect the visual amenity of
conservation areas.

No external alterations are proposed to Manor Lodge itself. Landscape enhancements
would be made to its grounds, which take on board advice from the Council's Conservation
and Urban Design Officer and the Trees/Landscape Officer. Accordingly, the proposal is
considered to comply with these policies in this instance.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



Local Plan: Part 2 policies BE1 and BE3 seek to protect areas of archaeological
importance. As stated above, very limited alterations are proposed as part of this
application. The Greater London Archaeology Advisory Service (GLAAS) have been
consulted however and have advised that due to the very sensitive nature of the site the
proposed landscaping works, refuse and cycle stores could, potentially, have some impact
on archaeology. As such, whilst no objections have been raised, a condition would be
attached to require the submission of a written scheme of investigation prior to the carrying
out of these works.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

BAA Safeguarding have been consulted. No objections have been received.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Saved Policy OL4 states that the replacement or extension of buildings within the Green
Belt will only be permitted if:

i) The development would not result in any disproportionate change in the bulk and
character of the original building;

ii) The development would not significantly increase the built up appearance of the site;

iii) Having regard to the character of the surrounding area the development would not injure
the visual amenities of the Green Belt by reason of siting, materials, design, traffic or
activities generated.

This policy objective is reiterated in London Plan (2015) policy 7.16 and paragraph 89 of the
NPPF (2012).

No external alterations are proposed to Manor Lodge itself. Proposed landscaping would
enhance its grounds and the visual amenities of the site. Accordingly, the proposal is
considered to comply with these policies in this instance.

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires the appearance and layout of developments to harmonise with the existing street
scene and the surrounding area whilst policy BE19 seeks to ensure that new development
within residential areas compliments or improves the amenity and character of the area.

No external alterations are proposed to Manor Lodge itself and landscape enhancements
would be made to its grounds. Accordingly, the proposal is considered to comply with
these policies in this instance.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policies BE19, BE20, BE21, BE22 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 seek to
protect residential amenity. The Council's Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) on
Residential Layouts provides detailed guidance to ensure that these policy objectives can
be met.

The Council's SPD on Residential Layouts recommends that in order to protect the
daylight and sunlight available to adjoining properties, and to protect against potential over
domination, a minimum distance of 15m should be maintained between adjoining two or
more storey buildings. It also states that a minimum distance of 21m should be retained
between facing habitable room windows above ground floor level in order to ensure there is
no unacceptable overlooking.

The southern facade of Manor Lodge is approximately 21m from the nearest part of the
closest residential property in Blondell Close to the south. Accordingly, minimum guidelines

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



are achieved. Furthermore, additional boundary planting is proposed to enhance the
screening between the application site and adjoining properties.

Notwithstanding the fact that no external alterations are proposed to the building which
could increase its impact on residential amenity, minimum standards relating to
overlooking, overshadowing and over dominance are met and the proposal is therefore
considered to comply with relevant Local Plan policies and Council guidelines in this
resepect.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) on Houses in Multiple Occupation
sets out recommended guidelines relating to the internal layouts of such developments, to
ensure an acceptable living environment can be provided.

It sets out the following maximum room capacity based on floor areas and numbers of
occupants:

6.5m2 - 10m2 - 1 occupant
10m2 - 15m2 - 2 occupants
15m2 - 19m2 - 3 occupants
19m2 - 24m2 - 4 occupants
24m2 - 29m2 - 5 occupants

The DCLG Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard is also of
relevance and, where comparable standards exist, supersedes those set out in the SPG.
This confirms that a single room should not be less than 7.5m2 and 2.15m wide. A double
or twin room must be at least 11.5m2 and 2.55m wide.

The bedsit room sizes within Manor Lodge range from 17.4m2 to 22.1m2. The majority of
rooms could accommodate up to three persons, with two of the rooms large enough to
accommodate up to four persons, in compliance with these guidelines. The Council's
Landlord Engagement Team have advised that occupancy ranges from between two and
four persons per room, with families often split across two rooms. Accordingly, the
development is considered to comply with relevant room size standards.

The SPG goes on to recommend that HMOs should contain at least one ground floor
habitable room over 10m2, other than a kitchen, for communal living purposes. Whilst the
Council's Landlord Engagement Team have advised that provision of communal space
tends to be unpopular in this type of accommodation, in excess of these guidelines, two
communal living rooms of 17.7m2 and 18.6m2 would nevertheless be provided at ground
floor level.

The SPG states that regardless of the number and size of habitable rooms, the occupancy
should normally be limited to either 10 persons or the number of occupants if the property
were converted into self-contained flats, whichever is the greater.

Based on the room sizes alone, the property could accommodate well in excess of this,
contrary to current Council guidelines. However, notwithstanding this, it must be noted that
each room would receive good levels of daylight, no overlooking and, unlike typical HMOs,
private shower room facilities. Furthermore, shared WC and bathroom facilities are also
available in addition to two sizeable kitchens, two sizeable communal living rooms, a
laundry room and a spacious garden. Given this, in addition to the transient nature of
residents as suggested by the Council's Landlord Engagement Team, the development is

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



considered to provide an acceptable living environment for its occupants. Accordingly, it is
not considered that refusal could be justified on these grounds.

The SPG also recommends that a minimum of 15m2 of private usable amenity space is
provided per habitable room (excluding those used for communal living purposes).
Accordingly, 195m2 of amenity space should be provided. With a usable garden area well
in excess of 1,500m2, the development complies with this standard.

All rooms receive adequate daylight and sunlight and no issues of overlooking occur.
Accordingly, on balance, it is considered that the development provides an acceptable
living environment to its occupants such that it complies with the objectives of the SPG and
with policies BE19, BE20, BE21, BE22 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2,
which seek to protect residential amenity.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The Council's SPG 'Houses in Multiple Occupation' offers the following advice in terms of
parking for HMOs:

"The Council will require the provision of up to 1 off-street parking space for every 2
habitable rooms, excluding those used for communal living purposes."

In excess of these standards, seven car parking spaces, including two disability standard
spaces, would be provided. Furthermore, it should be noted that storage for the parking of
up to six bicycles would be provided.

It is noted that a significant level of concern has been raised by residents and local
businesses over the impact of parking from the development on the village. Given the
nature of the use it is considered that high levels of car ownership amongst its occupants
are very unlikely. Furthermore, it must be noted that parking provision exceeds current
standards. Accordingly, refusal cannot be justified on these grounds.

The adjoining Manor Court complex to the north of the site is being used for unauthorised
airport parking and enforcement action relating to that matter is ongoing. It is considered
that many of the parking issues raised by local residents are likely to be attributable to this
unauthorised activity. Car parking relating to the adjoining site is not under consideration as
part of this application and must be dealt with as a separate matter. Accordingly, refusal
cannot be justified on these grounds.

It is not considered that the use of Manor Lodge as an HMO would create such an increase
in traffic to/from the site or such an increase in off-site car parking demand that refusal
could be justified. Accordingly, the development is considered to comply with Policies AM2,
AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part2.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

Issues relating to urban design are addressed above.

The Metropolitan Police have requested that a condition requiring the development to
achieve Secure by Design accreditation is attached should planning permission be
granted. However, these matters are now largely covered under Building Regulations and,
as such, a condition is not considered necessary in this instance.

7.12 Disabled access

Whilst level access is not available to the building and no lift is available to upper floor
levels, modifications to accommodate such facilities would not be acceptable given the

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

Grade I listing of the building. The Council's Access Officer has notably raised no
objections relating to accessibility to the building and it is not considered that refusal could
be justified on this basis.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this type of development.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

No trees or landscape features of merit would be lost as a result of the proposed external
works. The landscape plan incorporates new planting of trees and hedges and a new
grass management proposal to create wildflower meadows together with the retention of
close mown areas closer to the building. Minor modifications would be made to the existing
hard landscaping to reflect the recommendations of the Council's Urban Design and
Conservation Officer.

It is considered that the landscaping proposed would enhance the visual amenities of the
site and, notably, both the Council's Trees/Landscape Officer and Urban Design and
Conservation Officer have confirmed that the landscaping proposals are acceptable.
Sustainable waste management

Refuse storage for three 1,100 litre bins would be provided adjacent to the vehicular
entrance to the site. Full details of these have been provided. The timber store would
measure 4.9m by 1.6m by 1.2m high.

Located adjacent to the timber cycle store, new tree and shrub planting would be provided,
as per the Conservation and Urban Design Officer's recommendation, to ensure an
acceptable visual impact.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this type of application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site does not fall within a flood zone or a critical drainage area and no issues relating to
flooding have been identified. Notwithstanding recommendations from the Council's Flood
and Water Management Officer to require the imposition of sustainable drainage, given that
this is an existing building, temporary use and no new hardstanding is proposed, it is not
considered that this would be reasonable in this instance.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Noise

The development could, arguably, lead to an intensification of the use of the garden over
that which would have occurred from its use as offices or a care home. Nevertheless,
there is ample garden space well in excess of Council standards for the facility and,
furthermore, it must be acknowledged that the site would have historically been in
residential use. The landscape plan confirms that more usable mown grass and patio
areas would be retained close the building with trees and wildflower planting around the
edges of the site. This should encourage the predominant use of the garden to occur
closer to the building, rather than the site boundaries. Accordingly, notwithstanding
concerns raised by residents on this matter, it is not considered that refusal could be
justified on noise grounds and, notably, officers in the Council's Environmental Protection
Unit have raised no objections in this respect. It should be noted however that additional
visual screening is proposed by way of new planting along the south west boundary.

Air Quality
It is not considered that the development would result in any significant increase in traffic
to/from the site which could have a detrimental impact on local air quality. Notably, no

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



objections have been raised by officers in the Council's Environmental Protection Unit in
this regard.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

Points (i), (i), (xi), (xix) and (xx) relate to the principle of the development. This has been
addressed in the report.

Points (iii), (iv), (v) and (vi) relate to traffic and parking issues. These have been addressed
in the report.

Points (vii), (xii) and (xviii) relate to the internal living environment for the occupants. This
has been addressed in the report.

Point (viii) relates to refuse and littering. Refuse provision is addressed in the report. A
condition would be attached to ensure satisfactory refuse provision is provided on site.

Point (ix) suggests there are insufficient facilities in the village to cater for the number of
families there. This would be a temporary use. Refusal can not be justified on these
grounds.

Point (x) relates to landscaping. This is addressed in the report.

Points (xiii) and (xiv) raise concerns over fire access to the application site and nearby
premises, including the scout hut. No alterations are proposed to the existing site access.
Road markings indicate that no parking should be taking place on the approach to the site,
in front of its gates or adjacent to the scout hut. Accordingly, this is a parking enforcement
issue and refusal could not be justified on these grounds.

Point (xv) raises concern over noise from the site. This is addressed in the report.

Point (xvi) suggests occupants trespass into adjoining gardens. The boundary treatment
surrounding the site is residential in its character, sympathetic to the setting of the listed
building. Enhanced planting along the boundary to the south would assist in enhancing
security. No objections have been raised by the Metropolitan Police over crime from the
site. Accordingly, it is not considered refusal could be justified on these grounds.

Point (xvii) suggests the previous consents relating to the site were contrary to the wishes
of residents. This comment is noted. Refusal cannot be justified on these grounds
however.

7.20 Planning obligations

Not applicable to this development.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable.
7.22 Other Issues

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



10. CONCLUSION

No objections are raised in principle to the temporary use of the site as an HMO. No
physical alterations are proposed which would have a harmful impact on the setting of the
listed building and proposed landscaping would enhance the visual amenities of the
application site and surrounding area, including the Green Belt.

The development is considered to provide an acceptable living environment for its
occupants and it is not considered that it would have such a significant impact on the local
highway network that refusal could be justified.

The development is considered to comply with relevant current local, London Plan and
national planning policies and, accordingly, approval is recommended.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (2015)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design

Contact Officer: Johanna Hart Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



Site of
Priory Cell
(Benedictine)

Ll

B __-

e Gables \
PO |
- 4o

Harvard ‘
House t

\ \‘E\ls‘gb\sta

I
,""*——~;;7;;;;; st Il

; .

1 / /I
%ﬁ\ The Grange F

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH

[ ] site boundary Manor Court OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only. ngh Street Rgf;gﬁ::; gg:;\t’:gﬁs
This copy has been made by or with Harmondsworth Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the i i i : . ]

Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:

Act 1988 (the Act). 25525/APP/2016/1091 1:1,250

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey Central and S%Hé 49 September 2016 "_imhl'l LLINGDON

100019283 LONDON




Agenda Iltem 8

A
Item No. Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces
Address 6 HAMILTON ROAD COWLEY UXBRIDGE
Development: Two storey side extension, single storey front extension, single storey rear
:)(;T’?es:on and conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear

LBH Ref Nos: 5670/APP/2016/2112

Drawing Nos: Location Plan (1:1250)
MSB64-04
MSB64-03
MSB64-05
MSB64-01
MSB64-02

Date Plans Received: 01/06/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 08/06/2016

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1  Site and Locality

The application site comprises of a two storey detached dwelling situated on the western
side of Hamilton Road, Cowley Uxbridge. The property is finished in a pebbledash render
and characterised by a hipped roof and a two storey bay window and a carport to the
northern flank elevation. The house is set back to accommodate a front garden which
consists of partial hardstanding and shingle, and is enclosed by a low level brick wall.

The surrounding area is residential in character and falls within the boundaries of the
Orchard Drive, Hamilton Road, Clayton Way Area of Special Local Character. The street
scene comprises of a row of detached and semi-detached dwellings set back along the
adjacent carriageway to contain spacious front gardens and off road parking and
positioned in a linear formation.

1.2 Proposed Scheme

Householder consent is sought for a two storey side extension, single storey front
extension, single storey rear extension and conversion of roofspace to habitable use to
include rear dormer.

The proposed two storey side extension would be set back in line with the principal
elevation and would measure 6.9m in depth to finish flush with the original rear wall of the
host dwelling. The extension would be characterised by a hipped/crown roof, set level with
the main ridgeline of the host dwelling.

The single storey front extension would extend flush with the bay window, would measure
6.6m in width and would be characterised by a mono-pitched roof measuring 3.8m high.

Page 2 of 9

Page 43



1.3

The single storey rear extension would project 4m in depth, would extend the full width of
the original rear wall including the two storey side extension and would be characterised
by a mono-pitched roof with a flat tip to measure a maximum of 3.7m high.

The rear dormer would be situated central of the rear roof slope and would measure 1.7m
high, and 2.4m in width.

The proposed extensions would be finished in materials to match the existing.

Relevant Planning History
Comment on Planning History

The application site benefits from no planning history.
Advertisement and Site Notice

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

Comments on Public Consultations

A total of 7 adjoining and neighbouring properties were consulted via letter dated 09.06.16
including a site notice displayed outside the premises on 30.06.16.

A total of 14 comments and a petition containing 51 signatures received and the
comments have been summarised below:

. Window missing on flank elevation? reason?

. New window to GF will impact upon my property

. Builders living there working outside of normal hours

. Design of proposal indicates a HMO use

. Seeking extension of time for consultations

. LPA should pay special attention to preserve and enhance the conservation area.
. Concerned about height of rear extension and impact on my property

. No land levels provided

. Proposal will be out of character and will affect sunlight to neighbouring properties.
10. Proposal indicates HMO use detriment to area but not landlord.

11. Would result in an increase of cars to an overcrowded level.

12. Front extension would protrude normal building line

13. Is within an Area of Special Local Character and should be preserved.

14. Proposed development is out of scale with original dwelling and street scene

15. The applicant is not the owner and have concerns about encroachment of my
boundary line.

16. plans would result in porch feature being destroyed.

17. lorries and trucks delivering materials will cause damage.

18. loss of garden area will increase flood risk.

19. extensions will lead to loss of light into No. 5.

O©OoONOOOPLWN -

OFFICER COMMENTS: The objections raised will be discussed within the main body of
the report.

Page 3 of 9

Page 44



With respect to the use of the application site as a House in Multiple occupancy, this is not
permitted as the site falls within the Uxbridge South and Brunel Wards Article 4 durection
that removed permitted development rights for 3-6 bed HMQO's and thus requires separate
planning permission. The Enforcement Team investigated the claims, and it was found the
site is not currently in use as a HMO.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-
Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

BE5 New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main planning issues are the effect of the development on the character and
appearance of the original building, the street scene and the level of impact on the
residential amenity and light levels of the adjoining neighbours.

Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part two (Saved UDP Policies) requires
alterations and extensions to existing buildings to harmonise with the scale, form and
architectural composition of the original building. Policy BE13 requires the layout and
appearance of extensions to harmonise with the existing street scene and Policy BE19
ensures any new development complements or improves the amenity and character of the
area. Policy BE22 seeks to preserve the visually open gaps between properties to prevent
forming a terraced appearance.

Page 4 of 9

Page 45



Policy BE5, within Areas of Special Local Character new development should harmonise
with the materials, design features, architectural style and building heights predominant in
the area. Extensions should respect the symmetry of the original buildings.

Section 8.0 Front Extensions, Porches and Bay Windows states front extensions are eye
catching and change the face of the building. They do not only affect the character and
appearance of the building itself but also the street scene. Porches should appear
subordinate in scale and form, must not extend past the line of any bay window and in the
case of being combined with a garage conversion they may be integrated with a forward
extension of the garage not exceeding 1.0m.

The Council's Adopted SPD the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement:Residential
Extensions (December 2008) or HDAS, contains design guidance (below) for all types of
extensions which should appear subordinate in scale to the original building.

Paragraph 5.0: Side and first floor side extensions Two Storey: states extensions at first
floor provide additional bedrooms but have the potential to have a significant impact on
neighbouring properties and the character of the street. The Council requires all
residential extensions of two or more storeys in height to be set back a minimum of 1m
from the side boundary for the full height, to prevent forming a terraced appearance.
There is no requirement for a set back or set down to detached dwellings as they would
integrate with the existing house, and the roof should follow that of the existing roof. The
width and height of the extension should be less than that of the original house, preferably
in between half and two thirds depending on the site.

Paragraph 3.0: Single Storey Rear Extensions: states a range of roofs will be acceptable,
however they must not exceed 3.4m in height to prevent obstructing light from any
adjoining neighbours property. Extensions should appear subordinate to the original
house and as such an extension up to 4m deep is acceptable to detached houses.

The proposed two storey side extension would be constructed flush with principal
elevation of the host dwelling and would measure 6.9m in depth to measure flush with the
rear wall, would measure 4.3m in width and would be characterised by a hipped roof set
level with the main ridge to form a crown roof. The proposed extension would also retain a
separation distance of 150mm from the side boundary to the front elevation and as such
would result in the closing of an important visual gap which is characteristic of this Area of
Special Local Character (ASLC). The proposed width of 4.3m would also exceed two
thirds of the original width of the main dwelling, and as such is considered by reason of its
size, scale, bulk, design and roof form would be an overly dominant addition which would
detract from the architectural composition of the original dwelling, and by reason of its
siting to the flank elevation would detract from the character and appearance of the street
scene and the Area of Special Local Character.

The proposed single storey rear extension would measure 4m in depth, would extend the
full width of the host dwelling including the proposed two storey side extension and would
be characterised by a mono pitched roof with a flat tip to measure a maximum height of
3.7m. The proposed extension would be erected flush with the existing building lines and
would retain a small gap between the upper floor windows to appear subordinate, and it is
therefore considered by reason of its siting to the rear of the dwelling would not have an
adverse impact upon the original dwelling and the street scene. Bearing in mind the size
of the rear garden, the proposed extension would not appear cramped.

Page 5 of 9

Page 46



The proposed single storey front extension would comprise of a porch and would be
integrated with the proposed two storey side extension to form a garage entrance. The
front extension would measure flush with the bay window feature and northern building
line, and by reason of its size, scale and height would be a proportionate addition to the
principal elevation of the host dwelling. Furthermore, due to the sufficient set back
distance of the host dwelling from the front boundary, the proposed extension would not
appear cramped and would satisfactorily integrate with the character and appearance of
the host dwelling and the visual amenities of the street scene and surrounding area.

Paragraph 7.0 of the HDAS SPD states on detached houses, set ins should be increased
to 1m. Dormers should relate well to the proportions, roof forms and massing of the
existing house as it can have an impact on the residential area. The proposed dormer
would be set back a maximum of 500mm from the ridge and eaves and although would be
set in from the flank elevations by a sufficient margin, the proposed height of the dormer
would ensure the rear roof slope is dominated by an overly large addition which would be
unduly prominent from the public domain and as such would result in an adverse impact
upon the visual amenities of the street scene and the Area of Special Local Character.

The proposed development is considered to detract from the character and appearance of
the original dwelling and the visual amenities of the Area of Special Local Character and
as such would fail to accord with Policies BE5, BE13, BE15, BE19 and BE22 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two: Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the HDAS
SPD: Residential Extensions (December 2008).

Policy BE20 requires any new development to be laid out so as to protect the daylight and
sunlight levels of existing houses. Policy BE21 requires new extensions by virtue of their
siting, bulk and proximity would not result in a significant loss of residential amenity to
neighbouring properties and Policy BE24 should protect the privacy of the occupiers and
their neighbours.

The application site benefits from adjoining neighbours to either side at Nos. 5 and 7
Hamilton Road.

The proposed two storey side extension would be erected to the northern flank elevation
and as such would not be a visible addition when viewed from the outlook of No.7. The
rear dormer would be set centrally within the rear roof slope to face their own rear garden
and would retain a separation distance of 32m from the rear wall of the occupier to the
rear at No.12 Clayton Way.

The single storey rear extension would measure 4m in depth, however the height of the
ridge would exceed the recommended limit of 3.4m by 300mm, however due to the
sufficient separation distance between the two properties, the proposed single storey
extension is considered not to result in a detrimental impact upon the residential amenities
and light levels of the adjoining neighbours. All windows would face the rear garden and
would not result in a loss of privacy and overlooking.

The adjoining neighbour to the opposite flank at No. 5 benefits from a number of windows
along its southern flank elevation. Majority of the windows are obscure glazed, however
the ground floor flank window is transparent and serves a kitchen. The kitchen does
benefit from a dual aspect with an additional window to the rear elevation, however by
reason of its narrow width and limited level of outlook would be considered as the
secondary window. The flank window would therefore be considered as the primary

Page 6 of 9

Page 47



source of outlook and light, which is further backed up by the internal layout, with the
worktop and sink positioned on the flank wall. It is therefore considered the proposed two
storey side extension, by reason of its size, scale, and proximity to the shared boundary
would have a detrimental impact upon the residential amenities of the neighbouring
occupier at No. 5 Hamilton Road by reason of appearing over-dominant, over-bearing,
over-shadowing and resulting in a loss of outlook and light.

The proposed single storey rear extension by reason of its single storey composition,
depth and separation distance from the adjoining neighbour would fail to result in a loss of
outlook and light. The development would therefore fail to accord with Policies BE19,
BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two: Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and the HDAS SPD: Residential Extensions (December 2008).

Policy BE23 seeks to ensure all new residential development and extensions provide or
maintain external amenity space which is sufficient to protect the amenity of the occupants
of the proposed building in terms of its shape and siting. This will be assessed in
accordance with the HDAS SPD: Residential Extensions. The HDAS: SPD states a 4
bedroom dwelling must retain a minimum of 100sgm of rear usable amenity to be
considered sufficient to protect the residential amenities of the occupants of the host
dwelling. The proposal would retain approximately 150sqm of rear usable amenity area
which is usable in terms of its size and shape, and as such would comply with Policy BE23
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the
HDAS SPD: Residential Extensions (December 2008).

The application site would retain two off road parking spaces to the front of the property in
addition to a single parking space within the new garage, and therefore would accord with
Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

The application is recommended for refusal.

RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed two storey side extension, by reason of its size, scale, bulk and proximity
to the side boundary, would result in a closing of the visually open gap between it and the
neighbouring property, 5 Hamilton Road, giving rise to a cramped form of development,
which would be detrimental to the visual amenities of the street scene and the wider
Orchard Drive, Hamilton Road, Clayton Way Area of Special Local Character. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE5, BE13, BE15, BE19 and BE22 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the
adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

2 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed two storey side extension, by reason of size, scale, bulk, width, design and
roof form would result in an incongruous addition which would be detrimental to the
architectural composition of the host dwelling and the wider Orchard Drive, Hamilton
Road, Clayton Way Area of Special Local Character. The proposal would therefore be

Page 7 of 9

Page 48



contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic
Policies (November 2012), Policies BE5S, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

3 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed two storey side extension, by virtue of its size, scale, bulk and proximity,
would be detrimental to the amenities of the adjoining occupier at 5 Hamilton Road by
reason of overdominance, overshadowing, visual intrusion, loss of light and loss of
outlook. Therefore the proposal would be contrary to Policies BE19, BE20 and BE21 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the
Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

4 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed rear dormer, by reason of its height and bulk would result in an over-
dominant and visually intrusive addition that would be harmful to the character and
appearance of the host dwelling and this Area of Special Local Character. The proposal
would therefore be contrary to Policies BE5, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Councils
Supplementary Planning Documents: HDAS Residential Extensions (December 2008).

INFORMATIVES

1 On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2016). On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full
Council agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary
Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

2 In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in
the National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive
and proactive way. The Council's supports pre-application discussions which was
not taken, however we have been unable to seek solutions arising from the
application as the principal is clearly contrary to our statutory policies and a
significant reduction would be required to overcome the reason for refusal.

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

Page 8 of 9

Page 49



2 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012)
set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including The London Plan - The Spatial Development
Strategy for London consolidated with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national
guidance.

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

BE5S New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

Contact Officer: Naim Poptani Telephone No: 01895 250230

Page 9 of 9

Page 50



iz

" avowNoruwvdH

1
i
Lol ]
i
i
i
,' Il .
| i
i
1
1
'
1
i
i
i
II 1
| '
i
b []
'
"
1 !
[ !
h i
N 1
| '
i
1
1
i
1
: 1
| '
i
: 1
| 1
| '
' ' L]
,} i
1
' o ot
B - o
- [y [
- Y
!
/ '
/ '
N
l! N
! '
i 1
o v '
- LN} H
N ,
N
(I

CFWard Bd)

- “.

the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

CESTER ROAD e
----------------------- £
CF
8¢
Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary 6 Hamilton Road OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only. COWIey Rl:e,lsz;gﬁ:]nt; g:::\;:grels
This copy has been made by or with Uxbridge Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UBS 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
5670/APP/2016/2112 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & SOP'&Be 51 September 2016

, ™HILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



Agenda ltem 9

A
Item No. Report of the Head of Planning, Building Control, Sport & Green Spaces
Address LAND ADJACENT TO 14 AND 15 EAST WALK HAYES
Development: Construction of two, three-bedroom houses, one two-bedroom house and

related facilities.

LBH Ref Nos: 63226/APP/2016/2383

Drawing Nos: Living roofs
DAT/9.1
DAT/9.0
16-1218-01A
Location Plan (1:1250)
16-1217-02
16-1218-03
16-1218-04
Design and Access Statement
Parking Assessment

Date Plans Recieved: 20/06/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 24/06/2016
1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the erection of two x three bedroom houses, one two
bedroom house and related facilities. The revised proposal is similar to that recently
dismissed at appeal in terms of its layout. The proposed dwellings have however been
sunk into the ground in an attempt to overcome the Inspectors previous concerns which
related to the development failing to harmonise with the existing street scene and other
features of the ASLC.

It is considered however, that the revised proposal, by reason of its form, scale, size,
siting and design, which would still extend across the entire site, would be out of keeping
with the character and appearance of the streetscene and the distinctive character of the
designated East Walk/West Walk Area of Special Local Character (ASLC).

The application is therefore recommended for refusal.

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of its form, scale, size, siting and design
represents an overdevelopment of the site and fails to harmonise with the prevailing
distinctive pattern of development in the immediate locality. The proposal would therefore
result in a loss of visual amenity and materially harm the character and appearance of
the East Walk/West Walk Area of Special Local Character, contrary to Policies BE1 and
HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies
BE5, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012), Policies 3.5 and 7.4 of the London Plan (2016) and the Council's
adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

INFORMATIVES

Page 53



1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on
congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BES New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new

planting and landscaping in development proposals.
HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 3.3 (2011) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice

LPP 5.12 (2011) Flood risk management

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies
(2016). On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the
Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved

Page 54



3.1

3.2

3.3

policies from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from
Secretary of State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply
for development control decisions.

4

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive
way. The Council's supports pre-application discussions.

We have however been unable to seek solutions to problems arising from the application
as the principal of the proposal is clearly contrary to our statutory policies and negotiation
could not overcome the reasons for refusal.

CONSIDERATIONS

Site and Locality

The area is characterised by groups of 1920s/1930s terraced and semi-detached two-
storey houses. The site is located within The East and West Walk Area of Special Local
Character (ASLC). Therefore proposals within this area would need to appropriately
harmonise and complement the local character and appearance of this area.

The area was designed as social housing for local rail workers, which are typical of the
period. The properties are arranged in a cruciform shaped layout, creating small cul-de-
sac spaces, with a single narrow access route for vehicles. The ASLC forms part of an
original planned estate between the roads Birchway and Hunters Grove and was once
known as the Hayes Garden Village.

In general the area has a spacious character with the regular rhythm of the two storey
houses and the gaps and views between buildings playing an important role in its
appearance. Whilst overgrown, the existing site and other undeveloped corner plots, were
initially designed as open green spaces/allotments, and are integral with the layout of the
area, making them an important element of the area's character.

The houses are of similar design and materials, with pantiled hipped roofs, small catslide
roofs over the flank walls, side entrances and central stacks. Most of the frontages have
retained mature hedges as their front boundary treatment.

Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of two x three bedroom houses
and one two bedroom house and related facilities. All the houses are proposed to be
located around a central courtyard. The design principles and form the houses from the
previous applications has been maintained. The revised application seeks to sink the
houses deeper into the site so that the roof levels are at the same level as the entrance
footpath. The roof is proposed to be planted.

The application has been called to committee by the Ward Councillor for consideration.

Relevant Planning History

Page 55



63226/APP/2007/1832 Land Adjacent To 14 And 15 East Walk Hayes

ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY BLOCK OF 3 THREE-BEDROOM TERRACE HOUSES
WITH GARAGES.

Decision: 25-09-2007 Refused Appeal: 12-05-2008 Dismissed

63226/APP/2008/2556 Land At 14 & Adjacent To 15 & Land At 19 & Adjacent To 18 East W

ERECTION OF TWO DETACHED TWO BEDROOM BUNGALOWS WITH TWO DOUBLE
AND ONE SINGLE DETACHED GARAGES

Decision: 18-11-2008 Refused Appeal: 27-03-2009 Dismissed
63226/APP/2014/3023  Land Adjacent To 14 And 15 East Walk Hayes

2 x Single storey 3-bed attached dwellings and 1 x 2-bed detached dwelling with amenity space
Decision: 29-01-2015 Refused Appeal: 06-08-2015 Dismissed

63226/APP/2015/3525 Land Adjacent To 14 And 15 East Walk Hayes
2 x Single storey 3-bed attached dwellings with amenity space

Decision: 25-11-2015 Refused Appeal: 25-05-2016 Dismissed

63226/PRC/2014/22 Land Adjacent To 14 And 15 East Walk Hayes
Construction of 3 no 3 bedroom dwellings

Decision: 19-08-2014 OBJ
Comment on Relevant Planning History

63226/APP/2007/1832 - erection of two storey block of 3 bed terrace houses with
associated garages was refused and dismissed on appeal in 2007.

63226/APP/2008/2556 - erection of two detached two bed bungalows with associated
detached garages was refused and dismissed on appeal in 2008.

63226/APP/2014/3023- erection of 3 residential units of a modern design was refused and
dismissed on appeal.

Most recently application reference 63226/APP/2015/3525 for the erection of 2 x Single
storey 3-bed attached dwellings with amenity space was refused for the following reason:

The proposed development, by reason of its form, scale, size, siting and design
represents an overdevelopment of the site and fails to preserve or enhance the character
of the area. The proposal would result in a loss of visual amenity and would materially
harm the character and appearance of the East and West Walk Area of Special Local
Character and its surroundings, contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BES, BE13 and BE19 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policy 7.4 of the
London Plan (2015) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Documents HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

An appeal was subsequently dismissed. The Inspector commented:
"The properties are arranged in a cruciform shaped layout of narrow cul-de-sacs with

dwellings arranged behind front gardens. At the head of the cul-de-sac is a terrace of 4
dwellings and to either side of this terrace are matching green spaces which are visible

Page 56



from the street. This arrangement at the end of the cul-de-sac provides an attractive
symmetry and a pleasant openness within an otherwise dense pattern of development.
Therefore the spaces contribute positively to the character and appearance of the area.

| appreciate that the scheme has been reduced from that of the previously dismissed
appeal and that the houses would be single storey; to the rear of the site; and would retain
a gap between the adjacent dwellings so that views of houses beyond would remain.
Nevertheless, in spite of its green roof, the development would take up a large proportion
of the site, extending across its full width right up against its boundaries. It would still be
visible from the street and would spoil the existing symmetry and open nature of the end
of the cul-de-sac.

| therefore conclude that the proposed dwellings would have a harmful effect on the
character and appearance of the area. Consequently, it would conflict with Policy BE13 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) (UDP) which
indicates that development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fails to
harmonise with the existing street scene or other features of the area which the local
planning authority considers it desirable to retain or enhance. It would also conflict with
UDP Policies BE5 and BE19; Hilingdon Design and Accessibility Statement
Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Layouts; and Policy 7.4 of the London
Plan which, in combination, require that new development harmonises, complements or
improves the character of an area and should have regard to the form of an area."

Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1

Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BES New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Page 57



BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 3.3 (2011) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice

LPP 5.12 (2011) Flood risk management

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

The Hayes Garden Village Residents Association and 12 neighbouring properties were consulted
by letter dated 27.6.16 and a site notice was displayed to the front of the site which expired on
27.7.16.

Hayes Conservation Area Advisory Panel:

We do not think this latest proposal to build on this open land (effectively back-land development)
is any more acceptable than the previous proposals and therefore hope it will be refused. In
dismissing the appeal on the previous application (63226/APP/2015/3525) the Planning Inspector
said: "l appreciate - that the houses would be single storey; to the rear of the site; and would retain
a gap between the adjacent dwellings so that views of houses beyond would remain. Nevertheless,
in spite of its green roof, the development would take up a large proportion of the site, extending
across its full width right up against its boundaries. It would still be visible from the street and would
spoil the existing symmetry and open nature of the end of the cul-de-sac." The present proposal
has three single-story houses (occupying a larger proportion of the site) with a similar layout to
application 63226/APP/2014/3023 (also refused and dismissed on appeal). The applicant has now
attempted to reduce the visibility of the proposed houses by sinking them below ground level, but
they would still be visible from near the entrance to the site between Nos 14 and 15 East Walk. As
an aside, we wonder how the necessary earth-moving machinery would get onto the site as there is
no vehicular access, and how the soil would be removed from it. We agree with the Planning
Inspector's comment that "[The proposal] would also conflict with UDP Policies BE5 and BE19 and
Policy 7.4 of the London Plan which, in combination, require that new development harmonises,
complements or improves the character of an area and should have regard to the form of an area."
We believe this applies as much to the present scheme as the previous one. Our comments on the
previous application (63226/APP/2015/3525) were mainly concerned with its lack of off-street
parking. Despite the comments of the Inspector in his judgement on the appeal on this previous

Page 58



application, we still believe car parking is an issue as our experience of parking in this area during
the day is not that portrayed in the survey undertaken by the developer. It may well be possible to
park here overnight without trouble, but if the inhabitants of the proposed dwellings return home
during the day they would be most unlikely to find places to park their cars.

2 letters of objection have been received from occupants of neighbouring properties raising
concerns about the impact of the development on the ASLC and the increased demand for car
parking in the locality.

Internal Consultees
Conservation Officer:

This site is located in the East and West Walk Area of Special Local Character. This site has an
extensive planning history.There are some design concerns in regards to this application, please
see the team direct.

Please take note of previous comments in regards to the site as well as the Inspector notes from
the last appealed application (Ref: APP/R5510/W/15/3006538) dated 6th August 2015, in
paragraph 10 that 'in disrupting the sense of rhythm as a result of the pattern and layout of the
houses, and the gap between them, this scheme is unacceptable, and | conclude that it would
significantly harm the character and appearance of the area.’

Highways Officer:

The appeal decision on Application 63226/APP/2015/3525 accepts a car free development. Subject
to the cycle spaces for residents being in a covered and secure cycle store no objections are raised
on highway grounds.

Tree and Landscape Officer:

No objection, subject to conditions RES6 and RES9 (parts 1, 2, 4, 5 and 6).
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site has been subject to previous applications for residential development, while these
applications have been unsuccessful, no objection has previously been raised to the
principle of a residential development of the site subject to it according with the
development plan.

The site is located in the developed area and accordingly, the principle of a residential
redevelopment would be acceptable.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

The London Plan (2016) in Table 3.2 suggests that an appropriate residential density for
this site which has a PTAL score of 2 to 3 and a suburban setting would range from 45-
120 units per hectare (u/ha) for units with a typical size of 3.1-3.7 habitable rooms per unit
(hrfu).

The scheme equates to a density of 42 u/ha and is in line with the Mayor's guidance.
However, density guidelines are of limited use on small infill sites as it will be more
important to ensure that the scheme successfully harmonises with its neighbours whilst
still affording appropriate living conditions for its future occupants. This is dealt with in an
other relevant sections of this report.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Policy BE5 relates to development within Areas of Special Local Character and requires
all new development to harmonise with the materials, design features, architectural style

Page 59



7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

and building heights predominant in the Areas. Policies BE13 and BE19 require new
development to harmonise with the street scene and/or other features of the area that the
Local Planning Authority consider it desirable to retain or enhance and to ensure that new
development complements or improves the amenity and character of the area.

In dismissing the previous appeal the planning inspector considered the development at
full width right up against its boundaries, would still be visible from the street and would
spoil the existing symmetry and open nature of the end of the cul-de-sac.

He concluded that the proposed dwellings would have a harmful effect on the character
and appearance of the area. Consequently, it would conflict with Policy BE13 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) (UDP) which
indicates that development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fails to
harmonise with the existing street scene or other features of the area which the local
planning authority considers it desirable to retain or enhance. It would also conflict with
UDP Policies BE5 and BE19; Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement
Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Layouts; and Policy 7.4 of the London
Plan which, in combination, require that new development harmonises, complements or
improves the character of an area and should have regard to the form of an area.

The revised scheme continues with the contemporary design approach with a single
storey flat roof building with a green (Sedum) roof and rooflights. This approach was
originally to address a previous appeal in 2008 in which the Inspector voiced concerns
over the overdominance of the buildings.

However, in dismissing the previous appeal the planning inspector considered that in
many respects the buildings' modern form, design and materials, although representing
an imaginative solution to the constraints of the site, and complying with paragraph 60 of
the National Planning Policy Framework ('NPPF') which states that policies and decisions
should not attempt to impose architectural styles or particular tastes, and should not stifle
innovation, originality or initiative, he also considered paragraph 58 which states that
development should respond to local character and reflect the identity of local
surroundings.

In the case of the previous scheme, the inspector felt that the scheme did conflict with the
approach set out in paragraph 58. As the design approach within this latest scheme is a
similar design form, albeit sunk into the ground to reduce its prominence, the proposal
would still be at odds with the established character of this part of the cul-de-sac and it is
not considered that neither the Inspectors or the LPA's previous concerns has been
satisfactorily addressed and the scheme does not relate to the distinctiveness of the Area
of Special local Character and is therefore contrary to policies BE5, BE13 and BE19.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The issues are addressed in the section above.
Impact on neighbours

The Council's policies BE20 and BE21 seek to the protect the residential amenity of
adjacent neighbouring properties through spaces between them to allow for adequate
sunlight and daylight. Furthermore Policy BE24 seeks to ensure that occupants of
neighbouring properties do not suffer any loss of privacy.

Page 60



7.09

7.10

7.1

712

713

New development needs to protect the amenities of surrounding residential occupiers and
in the case of residential development, needs to provide accommodation of a suitable
standard. The Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts
provides further clarification in that it advises that buildings of two or more storeys should
maintain at least a 15m separation distance from adjoining properties to avoid appearing
over-dominant and a minimum 21m distance between windows and private amenity
space.

The proposed dwellings, being single storey and sunk below natural ground level these
houses will have no effect on neighbouring amenity. Furthermore there would be no
overlooking of neighbours, no impact on privacy and no loss of sun or daylight.

The proposal would not therefore have a significantly visually intrusive and overdominant
impact nor would it lead to a significant increase in overshadowing onto any neighbouring
occupiers, in accordance with Policies BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and paragraph 4.9 of the Hillingdon Design
& Accessibility Statement(HDAS):Residential Layouts.

Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London has adopted the new national technical standards through a minor
alteration to The London Plan.

The Housing Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) March 2016 sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is
an adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants. A single storey three
bedroom (5 person) house is required to provide an internal floor area of 86 square
metres, a 3 bed (4 person) house is required to provide 74 square metres and a two
bedroom 4 person 70 square metres. At an internal floor area of 82, 98 and 107 square
metres the proposed houses would meet the minimum internal floor area standards in
accordance with the London Plan (2016).

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Policies (November 2012) considers whether the traffic generated by proposed
developments is acceptable in terms of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic
flows and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

Policy AM14 states that new development will only be permitted where it is in accordance
with the Council's adopted Car Parking Standards. These require a maximum provision of
three off-street parking spaces for each dwelling.

The appeal decision on application 63226/APP/2015/3525 accepts a car free development
and the Council's Highways Officer has confirmed no objection to the revised scheme
subject to a condition requiring cycle spaces for residents being in a covered and secure
cycle store.

Urban design, access and security

The issues are addressed in the sections above.
Disabled access

No accessibility issues have been raised in respect of this application.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.

Page 61



714

715

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape
features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate.

No trees or other landscape features of merit will be affected by the proposal. The
Council's Landscape Officer has raised no objection to the proposal subject to the
imposition of landscape conditions to secure additional landscaping at the site. The
proposal is therefore considered acceptable in accordance with Policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Sustainable waste management

Provision for the siting of suitable refuse storage facilities could be made the subject of
conditions if the application was considered acceptable in all other respects.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments received are addressed in the sections above.
Planning obligations

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and
the Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of
additional floorspace. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £35 per sq metre.

Therefore the Hillingdon & Mayoral CIL Charges for the proposed development of 180sq
metres of additional floorspace are as follows:

Hillingdon CIL = £28530.46

Mayoral CIL = £11171.12

Total = £39701.58

Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

NO other issues raised.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and

Page 62



10.

also the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

CONCLUSION

The proposed scheme is similar to that recently dismissed at appeal in terms of its layout.
The proposed dwellings have however been sunk into the ground in an attempt to
overcome the Inspectors previous concerns which related to the development failing to
harmonise with the existing street scene and other features of the ASLC.

It is considered however, that the revised proposal, by reason of its form, scale, size,
siting and design, which would still extend across the entire site, would be out of keeping
with the character and appearance of the streetscene and the distinctive character of the
designated East Walk/West Walk Area of Special Local Character (ASLC).

Page 63



The application is therefore recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2016)

The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Page 64



Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Land adjacent to 14 and 15 East Walk

Hayes

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
63226/APP/2016/2383 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
September 2016

Central and Sputh o5

. ~ILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66



Agenda ltem 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



Agenda ltem 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82



Agenda Annex

Plans for
Central & South
Applications
Planning Committee

Wednesday 7 September
2016

THILLINGDON

OOOOOO

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND AT 17 PEACHEY LANE COWLEY

Development: Two storey building comprising 2 two-bedroom and 3 one-bedroom flats, to
include parking provision, involving demolition of existing dwelling

LBH Ref Nos: 66643/APP/2009/2783

Date Plans Received: 24/12/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 24/12/2009
Date Application Valid: 06/01/2010

Central & South Planning Committee - 7 September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 84



pajiwir JuswdojaAs( g 8iN108NYdIY SSOHD

OSTI71 = AE5 POl "SFPOTO00 | $3qumii 3auaor| “passasas sy v 6007 Wiuddo) umai) g ﬁ»ﬁﬁﬂl Z

XH€E 8an uopbuljiy eBpugxn sue Aeyoead /1

Page 85



BT NI SR Pl
nhn—am._aﬂ. e AAICE) £ i W (i Of
o - d - » g el A Duicui Dustng o
OALYLHGSHYEL T DN ._ )
DOZ 9V L) :
: Lol
RN 7 i =g
._. — !
'y o | o S O i ]\w
- . Tl :
%EJW':::..T dm i
’ | S0 ©
] i ,
g B 2 i
12 T i
ielisiatississs e U
T /
" v
5 2 .
o L I
P | Y .
§ 3
SR S _— )

Lol e mnauoo annows |
U ADED Gl SN L .

PUNGID UOERIDOY

/
g J 3 \1.|J/
N & .a./a.f.f \
\. i || ._.. \ _-. e ...r\l_._
/ ...V.m\.\a.n\\ >
/
.‘.
/
\ AT %
4 e
w‘_.

A )
U T | B

Page 86



¥ YloN ONEA|S 15OM
— — —
T e 2
Sag N—F
NOILYAZT3 HLEON
= m— /,__
] __ {
e " : — —— AR B = - r—

Y

Flply | §

e f & :
- — w.. ¥ f__

S g oL o0 OIS _..t ,..n_.

= e s j f

N \ s \ |
g F o

N
[e0)
(0]
(@]

©

o

NOLLYAZT3 153M

) g gL .3_..3_ (NOLLYAT13 13341S) NOILVAS TS HANOS

U ] L e eod
jf Dj qﬂ_ Mmoo iMoo \W

I

S \\ B 0 M@aUeD a\.\.
2 = iz y
.~ N A S

e %]
E8LT] BT



00zl % ukibrg _l | mm g D
L s sasasune m ‘m 2 m

e AL L] L] _=_ __u.
Adva) B L i) B ]

HREATEL

LAY ANANATVIARD F FOTATRLNINY FTIND
el

B s Tharos .
AEHEAVENH DTS s
BRGNS TS D eL

NUORGIRL

NG Ly GUE Y OUIOHD LIOT M FHOUYIG

Page 88

TelDeBIaL

I
saankBlesrgg aaalebiad M0t hiveats

ST NOUMASHEEY

HTRA L T |
GO U BUN LMD WMORE §1EAT 1

. PR i
T T ]
52§ ¥ L LV IS~ ey
Y O D YD MO Y54 ABARCE b

AT SULVOION! Te B34 40
EHI0E ONY QLA DOV BHIMD £

MHPAN TN S 4 lLHON DRAVANRE S 3ANTE T

n REALTASTIND S 4R
ABARIE FEMEND OL LI T SN 4

‘SAUON.




alogeel

aup] Asyopad /1




- _G_‘;C;Q NOLTI

Allotment Gardens

Play Area - -

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Site Address:
Land at 17 Peachey Lane
Cowley
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
66643/APP/2009/2783 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Central and Seyth 9o September 2016

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

S
™NILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address MANOR COURT HIGH STREET HARMONDSWORTH

Development: Change of use of existing building to a house in multiple occupation (HMO) to
provide 10 bedsitting units with parking for 7 cars (retrospective application for

full planning permission).

LBH Ref Nos: 25525/APP/2016/1091

Date Plans Received: 16/03/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 16/03/2016

Central & South Planning Committee - 7 September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



I s— W O iy L
C L NI N CAE S T RO T B e e e e HOMSPUOLLIEL]
R e S R R i L uwig avg Aunseg wans yHH
“ R e i o Ag mmg I0d0T WONV N i ki
] Fasiong

SIOAMYDILY  gvu
—Ouﬁm\og@ﬁxoz moum_OOmmJ\ ﬂ-.._vv—da E 2 G N R R i L T ; -
O¥E ram  2ayspio)iiay foFuey sTuny IMRE R PR Y PRI S ey rl
fpug uowmy  puey SSpUA  aSTOR [00YRS PIO UL S b
s | =wa | seu

yodnyod
m.?_o_z 1S

abouooip | ||
5_‘ [ [
| I
[~ A
e =] e T ST i ....\ \
wol g 0 _ 5 sl
=l \
e
= \
1 \
|

Page 92



dA10T/ONH/9T/ON

o
—

WL°Ze

WLl

ULl

UL LL

2WLLL

WLLL

W6l

WL

N M| | 0| © |~ D

Wy L

gL L

Yo lisa3g

HTNAIHOS
LISddd

woi § a

el SuL,

\

aBeaeoip

SAIBIDOSSY UI[OYEM -

MUBIY U0 S[IRIdp-10, R T

Wl Y G

pue abipo Jouep u g

Jaiueq Avesud apinoid o)

Buiugaids Joj pasiojuiRl pue

:.—nE_ pauejal BuiBpay Buysixg
slied

QAL oY ,r
eIl ocoamu:uz mnr 4

o

RAYSIH 0} 19J21

U 1001 X € - BIONG #snjey J//_

saoeds g - aI0|g 8o ..//
{Peiqesip g joul) seoeds J
edyy Bued pajeubisag J/

HN0Y) I0UBIA
ONIMEYd

ws ang
1

S§12231421 < LB e o L L ) . YHOMSPUOULIEH
L < i A0 02 UL R M B U WPR-UT AT N STHAV HL ey ang pasadory 12ang Yty
e G gl i g .

BRI S Z8 ;_. s e a3 e s, 1 1 o —_— 9D aoT YONVHN OWH N0 10U

Oy bOM  Adyspaojaay AajFueg sBury oy 3o .0 e P
afpug uoiuny  proyadpug  asnop] oS PO L e HeN ey spatoug
ST £ _ Ay
SERUPUBAE L3pun v
i spasapEa Sy o sy o
(a0 - D Funiesspup) o) SUSCUPILN PIPR SHLPIE [SIODPY o) 3
— POSOU SISPIG] [PNIPRY 0149 0

2502 |jspuolg | foN
e ——

V1000 Aq ueld

Suidesspue 03 19521 asea[d

Suideosspue] jo sjiejop 104

sqe|s Buined suoys
[Edmeu Y paoe(das
T Buipuespeey Bunsixg

Page 93

SHSPOg 0] - [BI0L

OJH 01 9s() Jo a8uey)



e .
= -
= =E3 ‘=
= s2€z=
= <[ =:::%,
= .= L= 455 8
=] = = A;‘gégéﬁ
@ 3 a_gx.ﬁé‘
s S-2@,.= CI=£3122
¢ w S EETY 2 (D I8 =
./Ino JOUB o5 (52583 Hih
_— a || = S ow D
o ~ o=~ 5 3';3_?2
=§ e IEE O
= o = = a = g S5 F =
8 = &= s &5 = =
s S a5 == =

Moor Hous

il i o

1

i3 ggig _;E ihy #
2 ety §§§g 3 1

i géz‘%im i

| g

!Eg il 3‘1
g3 e
f §-§§§§’§ i

Retcin existing predominatel
Holly, Tew ond Hewtharn Hedge,
ist introduce

olly.
Whers gops exi
in

El
Sukb St

% 3z "y
TSI
sl O ;
i L HE A I
il e Hi IR .
1 L cgcs B8 A
i HOHE
i i it B R
S T S TR e R
filans g pilet S RE -35 &
2528k ;EEITTT_T f*ii i
chid _ﬁz;ﬁ iy
STEDE FroE

i
i ggw Hi
Page 94 Hp




H
§

L

2. FLOCR LEVILS REGOMDES AT ENTHANCES AND EXITS ARDAPEUED

|, LEVELS RASED ONoE ST

Netes

H
”
ia §§§ £

§ oaze.nnd

1l

} edsuidenaitate,

Locaton Plan :

it 13 waleh

Ground Floor Plan

Basement Floor Plan

FiPortB 4

'.ﬁl

EafomiA 4

FaPomta

Page 95

Second Floor Plan

P il
1
3
1

| --T-
H
1

FaPona &

FrPortp -3

First Floor Plan

mkKksurveys

o S

AT Mo

Manor Lodge
Manor Court

Harmondswarth

Heathrow 1 Ltd.

=11

i
Ef

.

o

FaPamA 4

FaPointA <




d20T/0INH/9T/ON

UE QLY WLOL
WZ°0E aNOD3s
UG991L 1Syl
9061 aNNOY9
2U419'88 IEERNE
YID HoOo1d
ONILSIX3
FTNAIHOS VIHVY
390071 dONVIA

SIONYIIY

SQIBIOOSSY UI[BA

Wiee

P LL

ML LL

WL L)L

ML LL

ML 1L

L6l

WL LL

2Up L

UL

VIO

o
—

N o g O O M~ o0 9P

b

lisg3ag

4T1NAddHDS
L1Sadd

i S G

sRaang MW Aq

TR R R R s popracid Koamg uo paseg YUOMSPUOILIRH
AN 0D WLl M B B W pPR-UT AT M e Wt ueld _ao% :..uz_n.mnm_ TR
§ R F L 9T £ 26 140 1 awg o e afpor] Jouepy
. OWH 1o Jouely
DUY paM  nyspioguaay Aajfue sBuiy a3 8 0d03d

afpug uoiny]  peoy olpug  2SN0L] |00YS PIO YL SN HeN AR satong
s

i i ¥

PRACUIY SIS [FUONIEPY 9EL9

) U988 VIO
ue|d 100|4 Juawosegq
V 1u104 114
I 1 _

O

®»

= o
(@)}

©

o

_._
L o, — »

-

.
LI

L

€ WI0d 1t

ONH 01 9s() Jo da3uey)



DE0T/ONH/9T/ON

FUE QLY IWLOL
WZ°0E aNOD3s
UG99L 1Syl
9061 aNNOY9
2U19'88 INEERNE
YID HoOo1d
ONILSIX3
FTNAIHOS VIHVY
390071 dONVIA

we 0

S103IYIIY

SOIBIDOSSY UI[OBA\

2L '2g

o
—

Wy Ll

WL

LWLl

WLLL

ML LL

W61l

LAV

N O & 0 O M~ 0O O

WLl
UG LL l
Yo lisa3d

JTNAIHOS
L1sadd

i S G

EVED0L: sAaAmg YN
¥ 003 (T T T T UL S % - R PARIAAL KRR 16 s YUOMSPUOILLIEF]
AN o Bl fRE M UIWPRE-UT[AYEM STHAV HL uB|g 100[.] punon :v?:m_r—wm__
§8 ¥ L 9 6 1 8 1. e s 3Bpar] souepy .
HNO Ty Jouey
OUR bOM  MyspIo AajfueT sBuiy a 3 s 0 4 0 ¥ d SR R
aRpUg uowny  proy:adp N} [00YS PIO BL ueN e
U906l VIO
uejd 4100|4 punoio
| e N = _
: I 1 _
ML ML 1
| Ispa AUpLL
uny Surary £ sped 2 1spag AugaL
’ [ 1spag
r— — _||ﬂ
q_ 1L f I -
= I~
_L »
(0]
7 2
et=— . Pk =T o
L UGGl UL AZRE LG
ury Sutur Uy _ (RTINS Aspunery
il —
a
— B i e 0 e l—

OJH 01 9s() Jo a5uey)



dv0T/OWH/9T/ON

UE'QLY IVLOL
AUZ°0E aNo23s
AUB'99L 1544
U906 ANNOHD
1988 AN3WISYE
vID H0O014d
ONILSIX3
FINAIHIS VIHY

39007 HONVIN

wg 0

i S G

EVEBLL

sfaamg YW Aq

YUOMSPUOLLIEE]

» i e 0T 0 M ey e M MMM w papiacl £3AING U0 pasty
WHooaﬁgo&.{ UE‘ Ao ntlajeABorwWpR-0T[aYEM STHdY el 100} 1S wans yiiy
SQIBIDOSSY UIjaye e R BT LT £ T 610 1 ag $Tpo IouEN I
2 < .— V—. 3 : Oduy bOM  Adyspaojuaay  AajFueg sBury d 3% 0dO0 ¥ d ONH Hnod Jouep
aBpug Uy proy a3pug  2EN0Y (00§ PIO HL queN w0
P r—
poroIna s
ZW6'99L VIO
ue|d 100|4 }sil4
" .
_ 7
L LL AL AupLL
i L 1spad 8 1spag 6 1spag o
Wl'ge oL »
R —. B o
(@)
VA 8 6 ©
o
L)L 8
AU/ L ya
TRV AR 9 _ e
_
LA L o = ade101g
—— L AULLL AULBL
W16l 14 9 11spag ¢ uspog  uspag
ALLL € [ T L
My LL c
gLl L
IO lisd3ag
HTNAEHOS
LISddd

OINH 01 9s] Jo aguey)



dS0T/OWH/9T/ON

asﬁafém
sorero0ssy ey BN

AUE9LY TYLOL
UZ0E aNO23s

2WE'99) 1s4i4 e oL

Y061 aNNoYo R 6

988 LINaWasYe ULt 8

YO {0014 MLLL L

ONILSIX3 L 9
IINAIHOS VIHVY

J90d0T HONVIN AL S

LG ¥

/ __ AL LL €

. _ . — /L Z

| \__ gL L

Z Vvio | lisa3g

[ 0 1 | ATNAIHDS

T Lisaag

PIUT Sy G

0T 0 WY E M MMM
AN 02 BH]AYEABUIWPR-UI[IYTEM

RV L OT

Q¥ paM  dyspioguay AajFueg sBuy
aBpug uowIng  proyaRpUL  ISNOL| 00Y3S PIO) B L

£©Z 6 18 1

g kg EVEIN0LL

ok DINTSY  ew  sws

STHdY H1L

o " e S g evesg

i e g i g o —
pogee 1 303K 1 [ 34 00 VoceRRp L)

EEN THHON

papiang] £aaing uo paseg]

a3 s ododd
R ]

sfaams ¥ £q quOMSPUOIIRE
ueld 100[.f puedag 12208 Y
W0 oo OWH 1o s0uey
“patoig

< viogg

T

T

T

syt | aweq | oy
PP TP [FUGRIPRY G150l v
PRAGIEAS SOOI SUSPIG PUCTAPPY  GT-L-9 f

U2 0€ VIO

ue|d 100|4 puooag

+ = smmms

It

T

T

) e o o

T

2 = mm et 223 £ e
o s o o s

T

T

T

B 1

= = =

LTI
T
" e

= e 5

e

01 nspag

e

Page 99

o Lo T i B e A 7 e e 7 e

e i T i R . I R R i i

et e T e e e e e i e

- dwiod g

OJNH 01 98] Jo a3uey)



80'T/OWH/91/ON

SOIRIOOSSY UIANBAN

S100)1YoIY

& wew

FiOT B ST

E O T G- T T S G
AN O B[N EMPOIWPR-UT[IYT M
BB ¥ L 9T £©Z 6 14 1

DU bAOM  ANYEPIo U AajFueq sBury
ABPUS UOWNH  prOY SEPUE  ISNOL] [00UIS PO B L

medn

i ey - e shaam £q popiac LIOMSPUOLLLIE
R Pesnemareey ol e SRERSIDLAAPRIAM Rt RRA e
g hiismd fpoaly .
h de o st i STV ML Fuide,f YUON ¢ SUOHEAD[Y wang yiiyg
o L | LA e
o gt e oy P SFpoT IouR OWH Unop Jouepy

] queN e spatong

m_aré_ 5.__ g

oNusixa sY) (THSOJO¥Md

€ uolleas|g

Wwpo'ee auln wneg

g

J
sadig sadiy i [ wous | adid = -
—_— -
1 punotbauoy
cadif oM S
g
#oug
A 14617
|r4;|—
#oug 14 e
HoLg
#oug #ug

Page 100

DNILSIXH

W ET BU UFREQ
£ uoljeas|3

OJNH 03 98] Jo a3uey)



90 T/OWH/91/ON

S100)1YoIY
SOJRIDOSSY UI[ONBA

=

i

B ]

0T 00 W ey e M MMM
AN 02 B YEABUIWPR-UT AT M
B ¥V L 9T £ L6 1 46 1

DU PAOM  ANYEPIo LAY AajFueq sBury
ABPUE UOWINH  prOY SEPUE  ISNOL] [00UAS PO UL

P - EVEL
y

s . = sfaam A 1AG], OMEpUO
..Eﬂ%:viﬁ:ﬁh_iﬂgsﬂ?i on 3, S AN AQ paplacad YHOMSPUOULIEE]
e poseun LA b o1 Do |
g i s STV HL Fupe| nog | suohEAdg wang ydiy
md Lowid o] Ag wek] 5
: . e ey s sBpopioue
Pl -~ 7o o et PO IOURIN OWH ey Jourpy
S queN e satong

onsxa sv) (THSOJdO¥Yd

L uoljeAe|3

wpoeeg sun wneqg

Hapg

A

#foug

wug

$oug

m_.ﬂrﬁ_ ..2.__ g

Page 101

DONILSIXH

WO0EE 9r WiEg
} uolleA8 |3

OWH 01 98] Jo a8uey)



60’ T/OWH/91/OIN

SIONYDIY e
SOJBIOOSSY UI[ONEAL E

VIOT Sy G 3

E O T G- T T S G
AN O B[N EMPOIWPR-UT[IYT M
BB ¥V L 9T £z 6 14 1

DU PAOM  ANYEPIoJUIY  AajFueq sBury
ABPUE UOWINE  PrOY SEPUE  ISNOL] [00UIS PO B L

VBT

A o gy

ooy s o oy i shaning Y £g papraolyg YUOMSPUOLLLIRE]

i s g pigudebins s pasrml Jo oo i aaasde R —— .
o ooy s Lo : STHdY ML BUEE ] 1581 { SUOHEA|Y 1pang Yty

i L B B ofpor] souepy 07 Joue
el oy nn ) e 3 i

v o ssoc o g o ek ONH Hno) Jourjy
E= LN qHON e spatong

onsIXa sV) (THSOJdOYd

A

p uoljeaa|3

woo'eeg eu wneq

L

%G

g

dhd did

#2148

m_azﬂ_ .32__ g

Page 102

DNILSIXH

AWOErEE sun unie
v uoiieas|3

OJAH 01 2s() Jo aguey)



S0z vy a

) P - EVEL " "
S102IYILY gvwm: L i W U I I L T NN S sfoang NN Aq papirosg YUOMSPUOLLLIEL
LOT/OWH/91/ON : i I AN or wIIAXTMBuIMpR-ULAYEN Eis;aa_s_sédnﬁﬁsiﬂ T - wie
SAIBIDOSSY UI[adepM\ § § R b LOT €7 610 1 i o Y B i )
: vl T busvam  snwspiojuon  Aajfueq sBury PRt R = 7 - o s g B OWH Hnad Jouey
aBpug uownyy  proy aFpug  ISN0E| |00YIS PO AL ] ey v spatong

(DNILSIXH SV) AASOJdO¥Ud sl

wQQ €z auI wnieq
C uolljeans|3

Juap

#oug

#oug

JUBA
adid jusp,

Page 103

100 ONILSIXA

[T AT T
z uoljeaa|3

- ’ OJAH 01 98] Jo a8uey))



ST g,

S o ok EVBI001:1
» i w ST LT - B I T T A VRS N ) bbb o 7 ey apag 21015 259y (LOMSPUOLLIEL]
o —“\H\OEHIH\W H\UE WHOQH..—QQE me ynros‘mrjojemiurtwpe-uljayem 35...«..533.3.5&85?1_..%5&“ STAVIY i pue 0_ahu vuw.on_o.-a— o _.Hm__.m
SAIBIJ0SSYY UIjaye | ] $ 8 ¥V L9T ©rE 0 L winty . ; I ]
w 2 < .— Vﬁ a Tt OUE PAM  FNYSPIOJIIBY  A0|Fue sFEury .guegsvﬁﬂwﬂ.r;:v;. »mvo..h ouEN OWH 1mo) 10uRN
alipugg uomp  proy ofpug  asnop [0y o YL, s ] o g
s | swa | o
& B —w g
SNIB FSNATY 00LL X € SNIYLNOD £ T = _ 1 FTi= 5
“SHODU UALVTS ONY ONIGUYOS L I _m: f _w_ 1z
HITWIL TYDIILETA HLIM ISVE 3LIHONOD m i § r ¥ Iz £
NO FHNSOTINI ISN434 Y38NLL JOL N3HO v B ——- 50/, Sl iy
3401S 3SN43d =
¥ NOLLYAZT3 € NOILYAZTE Z NOLLYAZT3 L NOILYASTE
; L4 it |
i vm m m,/ H] a0 s g <
# )
s nouaT o
YAy &
ADHING ONY ._.Z(.wm_mmm._ﬂznm__.ﬂ_rumw a1 o= 9T DI
OL DNILLIH THDN - ONIZHON W LLHSIN A el
HYINIS ¥O
WILSAS HIWH ITTAD TIIMONNOS dWXOUE m \r \_F } % =
yred joaeib SUNO93 ¥ Ll G314 SHO00 HSNL it L Lk mm
papuoq uisay s @mﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ 1
NO 301 WS H3aNIL - - - _..l
(uerd adeospue s,y 1000 0} } Y
Jayai siieyep |iny Joj) eaJe jueld ( a5 o)
" S80edS 9) 3HOLS
SN082BQIaH pue qniys

931} ||IIH uiqoy pasodoid

34d01Ss 3sN43y (seoeds 0)

3F40LS FTOAD
J4ND3S

1sod ejeb eouesjug

/ IIeA Buisix3

F710AD F4NO3S

wg 0

OIAH 01 3s) Jo d3uey)



Site of
Priory Cell
(Benedictine)

El Sub Sta

Tithe Barn

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Manor Court
High Street
Harmondsworth

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
25525/APP/2016/1091

Scale:

1:1,250

Planning Committee:

Central and Spadb 105

Date:
September 2016

LONDON




Item No. Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 6 HAMILTON ROAD COWLEY UXBRIDGE

Development: Two storey side extension, single storey front extension, single storey rear
extension and conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear
dormer

LBH Ref Nos: 5670/APP/2016/2112

Date Plans Received: 01/06/2016 Date(s) of Amendment{s):
Date Application Valid: 08/06/2016

Page 20of 9

Page 106



06¢L L 3TVOS
NV1d NOILVYOO

C X
[ -]

]

i

N
Ak

himw TD"*]E
3%: |

Page 107



(paatasel spEuy |1v)
(11T SINIWNAO TIATO ALHAd0H 9514 9107 o nuddoy

wo MZUBISIBEGsW | EwS Vol 0LSM

PEB LGS PRL0 GO BEEE Z0S 1ZL0T 8L SPUBIIN 1SINY
fngsaupap

peoy pesuiioH egg

20U Uiwpy

dl1 SINIWdOT3A3A ALHIdOdd 8SH

SO0-F9ESN ON

Bupusg sding g umeig ‘pROY LOY|MUEH § g
3407 URIE U302 -eeg e LI D

Jauniop deal YIm Uo|ISIsAuod Jo|
|2ul uojsuayxa apis Aa10)s Z Juoy) ‘1eal 49 - YdH

00G:L A1VOS
NV1d MOO'1d

HAMILTON ROAD

AVM NOLAYIS

Page 108



(P
(LT S INAMdO TN ALE3d0%d HSIN

oy

weo pizubisapiBEgsw | w3 Vdi 0LSM

¥EG LGE PEBL0 I GOW  BEEE Z0S LZI0 WL SPUBIPIY 15PN
Aangsaupam

peoy pesyfioH ezg

30O UupY

L0~ FEESW o
e gan efpudn
Bumuag sding g umeig “PEON USHAUEH § s
10T Y2sEN T -BEg BBl LW Ral=]

Joulop Jeal YiIM UOISIaAUCD Yol
12Ul uojsuajxa apis Aalo)s Z ‘Juol) ‘1eal 49 - YdH

BiOA O

L pag

TP

LT 2UBIFN 1S O USISSHULIOY LONLIM
Aq 1dasxe papudte Jo peonposdas oq jou Aew pue gL 7 2uliseg
19 o ybuddos sy aie pajardap syiom oy pue Bumesp siy gy

0E5L 1oy Bupuuely Anunod g weo eyl

10 §9 UOIISS JOPUN BIOU DAAIDS 8] CF 51 JOUMD Juea[pe
BYF SOLEPUNOY JOA0 BUI|ING BaUA POMOYG) SU0j5ACId

S PUE GEGE 1Y HEM ALIES BUJ JO SILI0) B} JOPUN POULIOUT
04 O 51 JOUMO HIBIEIPE ayE SHUBRUNGY Bit o) Buipng asaym

TEEIONAEE

00L:1 @|eds
S1NOAVYT 4004 8 44/ 49 ONILSIX3

Page 109

00l - 1 3738

g
sanen



V)
L6 )

(10T STNFINGO TIEASO A PHHd0Hd §SIN D
e e R

oo piZUB|SAPIBEIGSW ; BWS Vi 0LSM

FEB 1SE PSRL0 T 99N GEEE 20G 1210 WL SPUEBIPI 1SIA
Aangsaupapn

peoY pesUfioH Bzg

2010 Unpy

aL7 SINIWdOTIAIA ALY3dOdd 8SN

Jaulop Jeal Y}m UoISIaAUGD Jo|
12U} uolsualxa apis Aalo}s Z Juol) ‘4eal 49 - YdH

T0-FoESI oN beas

v g8n 'ofpuman
Buuueg sding g uneig “PEOY UGYUEH 9 g
SL0T U3 WOT aeg BRI LA e

00L:L ®[eag
SNOILYAZTE 3dIS 8 LNOYH / dv3Id ONILSIX3

ge

(LT ZUBISO 19 0 UOISSHALIOY LOMLIM
Aq 1dasxe papudte Jo peonposdas oq jou Aew pue gL 7 2uliseg
19 o ybuddos sy aie pajardap syiom oy pue Bumesp siy gy

0661 10y Bujuuely Anunad g umoy el

10 §9 UOIISS JOPUN BIOU DAAIDS 8] CF 51 JOUMD Juea[pe
843 SOUBPLROG 4940 BUIPING BI0UM POMOI0} SUOISIACID
SU PUE 9661 10V [/EM ALBJ DI 4O SI4ID] DU JAPUN POULIOJUI
04 0] 5] JAUMO JIBIB[DE Y} SOUEPLNG] BYY 0) BUPING oM

TEEIONAEE

00l - 1 3738

§ 4 £ 4 b 0 S

sanap



Wi
CLLT SINIWNAGTIAH A

woa pyzubisapiBBasU - [ Wit 0LSM

FO6 LSE PS80 TGO BEEE 205 LZMO0PL SPUBIRIA 1S3
fengsaupapy

peoy peayfioH ezg

B0 unupy

dL7 SIN3IWdOT3IAIA ALH3dOdd gSIN

€0- PoES oM DAD T 1§ Bumeig o) 9eg

v gEn "ebpuaxn
Buueg sding g uwaig “PRCY USIEH § WS
940Z USSR LB0T -aRg BUEld L o

Iauliop 1eal Y}IM UoISI3AU0D Ho|
[oul Uoisua)Xa apis A310)s Z ‘Juolj ‘183l 49 - YdH

ey

v peg

e 7

LT 2UBISHT 1D J0 UOISTHILIOA HOLLIN
Aq idasxe papuaie Jo pesnposdar B jou AW Pus gL T Tubiseg
19 o ybuddos sy aie pajardap syiom oy pue Bumesp siy gy

0664 1oy Bunuuely Anuna) § umo ey)

10 §3 UORIDS JAPUN BIN0U BIAIDS B of 51 JOUMG JUeselpE
By SOMEPUROY 4040 BUipIng sIouA pomoljo) StoisiAcad

SU PUR $E6L 13V EM ALEG B JO S0} BUY JAPUN PILIOT
G 01 5 JOUMO JUBRIPE SYI SOUERLNGG Bt 0} BuipIiNg Bsalm

EATOR

. ERETT

0011 ®leos
SLNOAV 44/ 49 A3S0d0dd

Page 111

W AE01

£ 4 b 0 g
salep



(paszasar spgEu [y

(LT SINTINAO THASG ALHIAdOUd S818 9107 & miwidoy
IS S I S S S

woo pyuBsaPIBEIgsY | IBWS VL OLSM

VE6 LGE FGBLD T 9OW  BEEEZOS LZLO AL SPUBIDI 1S9/
Aingsaupa

peoy pesyfiod ez

200 Uy

QL7 SLNIWNdOTIAIA ALHd3d0dd gSIN

FO-¥2ESH  oNDRg £ & BUpMBI0 o e a3
— i S 004:} oeds
sizuwmnugz  eRg wEaLlw D SNOILVYAITT 3dIS ' LNOH4 / dv¥3d d350d04dd

13UlI0p JB31 UM UOISISAUOI JO|
[oUl Uoisua)Xa apis Aal10]s Z Juol) ‘1eal 49 - VdH

“uopEzyddy

RO e e b

s : S % _H_ _H_ S

X

Page 112

Mg ST
—] &

Bunysie yopew
0 s pasapUEy

Bunaia yopew
O SOR) Jo0

LT 2UBIFN 1S O USISSHULIOY LONLIM
Aq 1dasxe papudte Jo peonposdas oq jou Aew pue gL 7 2uliseg
19 o ybuddos sy aie pajardap syiom oy pue Bumesp siy gy

“086L 12y Bunuuely Anunod  usoy ey QOr ¥ ﬁ Mquow

O § UONIAT JAPUN BI10U BAAIDS BG O} 81 JBUMS JLSIEPE
B} SOUEPURGY 4BA0 BUIDIING GIYM POMONO} SUOfS|A0Id

S PUE GEGE 1Y HEM ALIES BUJ JO SILI0) B} JOPUN POULIOUT
04 O 51 JOUMO HIBIEIPE ayE SHUBRUNGY Bit o) Buipng asaym

ETORRIE

sanen




2o ELAYTON Wy T

lﬁﬁ F
T avodwoulwww

! :
.

- 1
-y T
L) L2
R
1

Do
i

Lo
ik "
T
E
A
|

o
-

]

[
4
3

_______

1
S
e

- o ‘

ey ﬁ‘.
AR

T )

&

£xiil)

o

Site Address: ) LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary 6 Hamilton Road OF HILLINGDON
i : Cowle Residents Services
Fer identification purposes only ; y Planning S ection
Uxbridge Ciuc Centre, Untridge, Midda UB2 1UW

This copy has been made by or with

the suthority of the Head of Commitiee Telephone Mo, Uhiwidge 250111

Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the - - - 5 £
e R Flanning Application Ref: Scale:

Act 1282 (the Act) 5670/APP/2016/2112 1:1,250

Unless the Act provides s relevant

sxCeption o, copiright. Flanning Committee: Date:

& Crown copyright and database S t b 2“16 ii ] | N J ¥ 1N "
ights 2018 Ovrd 5 ' °P'§ Tll.} WET LN
EIgEI{HE!IEE!S- E C\E“tral & S Be 113 Ep e LOWDOR




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND ADJACENT TO 14 AND 15 EAST WALK HAYES

Development: Construction of two, three-bedroom houses, one two-bedroom house and
related facilities.

LBH Ref Nos: 63226/APP/2016/2383

Date Plans Received: 20/06/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 24/06/2016

Central & South Planning Committee -7 September 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114






20 - LT21-91

arun "y
SN SN

o
TG paial il

.a:,zwiz.u![«.__”mu ﬁ._..._.m e 3 " . - pasodoid s& ueid ¥o0jg pue iooy punail jBmo)
N i d Hr e B iy SoARH HIEA 1S3 G PUB §| 'SOU Usamiaq put
mmDL D:m B 08 i iz g T B G
PO ——— - eA— 3315 40 Wawdojanapay
g 0

[ == .

P

©
©
e —
()
(o))
[
o
062111 ueyd voneso)
IR
5 VAN,
NV/ESIAS
Nl TSl
NI
5 SaWs
3 ‘% T Mf%w
- S o
TR
-%\ SNLA
[ & il
e PrE——— :
ST e s =1y L (b AL TR L SO
i = v g EL b by proms i w i Biaa iy
22 N oG A 1370 W TR I Do e ey
VAT ) e . - - W Ry LG DA e T M D AT ALY D ) e 1)
ot A i A ? s B = = Aty ek




W10 - 8TZ1-91 e e
LT
R e
ek ReEns 1 e el N pasodoid Si [@A3] puncisy
T L) rovabiesn By bt 2 Ol L S| )

Hans fury: L
b :u....m o - B B _ e soAeH HEA 1583 G| PUE f "SOU UBBMIBY PUET
oJQg PO —— - ES— alis Jo Juawdolaaspay

(mimiw]
]
11
®

d
; X . il
# 2y ¢
£ _, 7 S i
.fi_.8.==|wvmf|zl... . ./
-y RET 2
= u__n.l.. = ke S
'a P

o
il
\__
s
e
'
i
rd
Fi
4
4
4
\..
/
\_\
2
e A g i P st e 2
L e g - W Gaisiamia (b LSS U A
: 1 b m a2t (e P it s fue [
oo 1 Ny .Y N GRS L A P Pt
i ] ¥ . ». o o Bt ) T4 48 O A U 000 2 LU [T O W P LAY i iR 3
0t et At Bt 63 b et ) by s iy A gy, W I P AR i st s = 4 e e il o aebide




st coien WO HLLY 9L NESSH
N LA T, O oNddd
AOOMNAOELL

) AVOH HOTH

ASOAOH TN,

Ea%»mzu‘

Le/1va ;
— oHOMg |

OTNOWIVY NOLNY
CANZND

¥3STIAAI 'STAYH
8or

SNOILYAZIE INNLNO
ERITS

HE NMvET

FLOZ MHdY  3uva

LB00L:L 3WIs

HOLINTDOEGY AD 263
R

auva SNOISIAIY

LR Y ATEONGE AN W3 B
WYL AT G TIY BRLLY LI SEE I
DI WD A vk D RO | T
W LI
Eggiasi.

830N

L -

-

—r——» Y e
M O e W R - — — —

e

i
14
i<

2T

s o

e
s pon w3 sy bt i
- T vy by
ey g 8 i 3
e -
e oy
- . W o s
W g )
o -
_man % ey
i e e vy W
non wtom o demmen  w g samy 0
[ .
il ] oy e b
- Dl way
w oo oy i T
e i -
g ajaa wmn e e poms s W
i ]
e Lo By drn uts,
v e 3 o s
o —— AL
o o 40 vado S B3
WA S as e Bemien meeed Mo
W E e ey e T
B T L ]
ar vy — o
e o - i ]
1 v 3 o w
wopw Dyw  Seey s sty a0
—— e
D e B R e
g the e
] g
o omg nam eed
e e e
- . i
e g oy
e b e
) po— ]
whasoy e M ]
e e e
o g Bowd
el g v
oy ey e
e % ]
e e on o

E

o i

L . 1 i

ey 2 T

Page 118




€0-81¢1-91 s -
) it il
TR EaanT
R ety Gl " o -z 10 | pasodoud se suoness|a
Ll " " - —
- g g —= m ——ie sofep HIEpn 1583 G PUB §1 *SOU UBBMIBY puE]
5 == s
BSOJ OQns o 2% - 0= G - St R
g 0
N N O]

€0 UONEAS|S [BUONISS

—
~—
06Z1: —_..m_n uoneso)
s T " et AL G L
b ot o e b
e oy Ny Oty SaW WU VI OR WIRELY AL W Ll S T
T e - » e 0t LV TR i 0 M D LA LAY Bt ) o
- PO e




v0 - 8TZ1-91

g e
S B adir il
e - .
B:i?...iu!lznﬂ..““m‘ﬁz. Gl - o _ -z 0  pesodoid se suojeas|3
ans pury: o . 0O — ;
i 0Jd = BAEH HIEA) 1SET G PUB | "SOU LBBMIEG puET
e e a0 m . % — s
mm D:m i ssagarpay L sy RO @u_m.uﬂ Hﬂ@EﬂO_gwﬁwm_
L3 0
[ == mw .
4
5}

Aay uoneaa|a

o7

N ~—
iy MEpUR Hasa FBuppng 100 M i;jﬂ% ) — shappng 100 Ransd (0]
44 uoneasia |euonas
v e e lipping 116 Bulisive B | amuigping no e
oyessie
052Z1:1 ueyd uoneso;
e 3 5

e are Ui i SN LS

e iy Ny ndnay Aew WIIT VI O LSRR AL O 1 > e Vi Do

O Y &1 » 3 el o L UM TRl e 00 M D LRI Gk g piaae 4

-y n e s i S g s I skt




i q I g
h §! K 1}3. Hslr i%ii g Yy " ~—_§ 5 , gg
s;!liisisfiz}iui im!x!aﬂiiu}imlifﬁ;mi@Xa 'l s ; bt E§ H o é; 5 g z g t
sosilbel eennitodvantonunkbnboreanbonanndieid ; E;Egg g =§§ P E g Eﬁ =iz g g‘ g =4 g i £3
- T i%%u CRELI 3822 adll
: o g i} 151 | |8 gt i <5 4lulElg| B2 z|E £ ok
b B Iu rﬂxs YRTRRRRE RN R FIRlEEE] ) g) B8 HE
%;!iiii:!h!iigiiﬂ!!; !i! ms !!es}:ifil } ey » ggsggi géﬁ 2 % . g | % 5;5%2
redugaiiafunelo38BnonobbEatebodanazestacissuann | l 1 [ A g fg iaf ig"'i'!; % CJE% E § E 'ﬁggg
o |

B 5 osvals

oorolS.

¥ * 058615

Page 121




Notes:

|:| Site bounda

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with

the authority of the Head of Committee
nt to section 47 of the

Services pursua
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Land adjacent to 14 and 15 East Walk

Hayes

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
63226/APP/2016/2383 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
September 2016

Central and §oyth22

™NILLINGDON

LONDON




	Agenda
	6 Land at 17 Peachey Lane, Cowley - 66643/APP/2009/2783
	7 Manor Court, High Street, Harmondsworth - 25525/APP/2016/1091
	8 6 Hamilton Road, Cowley, Uxbridge - 5670/APP/2016/2112
	9 Land adjacent to 14 and 15 East Walk, Hayes - 63226/APP/2016/2383
	10 Enforcement Report
	11 Enforcement Report
	PART I - Plans for Central and South Planning Committee

